
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

July 5, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 

 
    

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Mission and Vision  Barbara Sowada 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Trustee Appointment  Barbara Sowada 

A. Oath  Geoff Phillips, Board Legal Counsel 

IV. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

V. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

VI. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Policies (Remains under review/development, no request for action)  

1. Workplace Violence Prevention Program 

2. Employee Policy – Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment 

B. Board Policy – Success/Talent Management Plan (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

VII. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. Election of Officers (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

B. Committee Assignments (For Your Information) 

C. Annual Conflict of Interest Disclosure (For Completion and Return) Barbara Sowada 

D. Infection Preventionist Letter of Approval for Appointment (For Action)   Noreen Hove, 

 Director of Surgical Services, Infection Prevention, & Grievance Coordinator 

E. Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan (For Review) Kara Jackson, Director of 

Quality Accreditation, Patient Safety, & Risk 

F. Infection Control Plan and Annual Evaluation (For Review) Noreen Hove 

G. Credentials Committee (For Action) Kerry Downs, Director of Medical Staff Services 

1. Radiation Oncology Privilege Form 

VIII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

IX.    Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Taylor Jones 

B. Human Resources Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Marty Kelsey  

1. Bad Debt (For Action) 

2. I.S. Report 

3. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information 

1/149



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

July 5, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 

 
    

AGENDA 
 

D. Building & Grounds Committee   Marty Kelsey 

1. Laboratory Options (For Action)  

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Barbara Sowada 

I. Joint Conference Committee Barbara Sowada 

X. Contract Review            Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel 

 A.   Consent Agenda (For Action) 

1. First Amendment to U of U Helipad Facility Use Agreement 

B. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Fibertech 

2. Martin Ray Laundry Systems 

3. Radio Network 

4. Sweetwater Now 

5. WyoRadio 

XI. Board Education  Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Introduction of Board Members 

XII. Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts, Medical Staff President 

XIII. Good of the Order           Barbara Sowada 

XIV. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Barbara Sowada 

XV. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

XVI. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

2/149



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/149



4/149



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

June 6, 2023 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on June, 

6, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Ed Tardoni and Dr. 

Barbara Sowada.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff President; and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

Mr. Robb Slaughter, County Commissioner Liaison was excused.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Jones read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson relayed a Mission Moment, in relation to Ms. Patty O’Lexey, Education Director 

and member of Patient Family Advisory Council (PFAC). The community is appreciating the 

Health Care Portal, noting it is “Amazing” and how easy it is to receive results. Additionally, a 

strong increase in CPR and Community Services was noted. 

 

AGENDA 

 

Ms. Pendleton requested an amendment to the agenda to remove “Employee Policy – Non-

Discrimination and Anti-Harassment” under “New Business” as it is not ready for review; and add 

“Employee Decision” under “New Business”. The motion to approve the agenda with noted 

changes was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the May 3, 2023, regular meeting as presented was made by 

Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.   

5/149



 

 

Minutes of the June 6, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the May 11, 2023, special budget workshop as presented 

was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.   

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

There were no comments.  

Dr. Sowada used this time to express appreciation to Mr. Tardoni. Mr. Tardoni has served on the 

Board of Trustees for over five years and this will be his last official meeting as a member. All 

shared an “Ed War Story”.  

Mr. Tardoni shared a quote from President Roosevelt: “It is not the critic who counts; not the 

man who points out how the strong man stumbles, or where the doer of deeds could have done 

them better. The credit belongs to the man who is actually in the arena, whose face is marred by 

dust and sweat and blood; who strives valiantly; who errs, who comes short again and again, 

because there is no effort without error and shortcoming; but who does actually strive to do the 

deeds; who knows great enthusiasms, the great devotions; who spends himself in a worthy cause; 

who at the best knows in the end the triumph of high achievement, and who at the worst, if he 

fails, at least fails while daring greatly, so that his place shall never be with those cold and timid 

souls who neither know victory nor defeat.”  

Mr. Tardoni shared his philosophy: “If we all agree, all the time, we had better ask what’s going 

on?” Mr. Tardoni then shared with the audience the gifts presented to him for his service: a hard 

hat signed by many of those that have worked with him over the years, and a custom belt buckle 

with the hospital logo. 
 

Ms. Richardson thanked Mr. Tardoni for his direction, knowledge, and experience. She noted he 

was an amazing person who helped her so much and made her become a better leader. 

 

Mr. Tardoni closed with a final observation that when he first arrived, we were in trouble and 

more trouble was coming with Covid, but we came through it. He said we waged battle with the 

Cerner upgrade – we fought it and won. He said we accomplished in one year what it takes many 

to do in five years. 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

Employee Policies – Workplace Violence Prevention Program 

 

Remains under review/development, no request for action. 

 

Employee Policies – Workplace Violence Prevention Policy 

 

The motion to approve the employee policy as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. 

Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

6/149



 

 

Minutes of the June 6, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Board Policy – CEO Evaluation 

 

The motion to approve the policy as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Ms. Pendleton. 

Motion carried.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Board Policy – Succession/Talent Management Plan 

 

Dr. Sowada noted this policy was originally written six to seven years ago and is up for review. It 

has been updated, with long, hard consideration by the Governance Committee. Dr. Sowada 

requested any questions or suggestions; none were voiced. If questions or suggestion come up 

later, please send them to Dr. Sowada or Mr. Kelsey before the next Governance Committee 

meeting. 

 

Credentials Committee – Pathology Privilege Form 

 

The motion to approve the Pathology Privilege form as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; 

second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

 

Employee Decision 

 

An employee hearing was held prior to the regular Board meeting. Action was taken. The motion 

to approve the decision was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson began her CEO Report with updates on Person-Centered Care. Training of 

employees continues, including new orientees and providers. The training has proven beneficial 

with much positive feedback.  Work continues as well toward Planetree certification. 

 

Several new providers have been added to the team: Dr. Hacer Kural, OB/GYN, starting February 

2024, Dr. Kyle Hoffman, General Surgery, starting September 1, 2023, and his wife, Dr. May 

Poundstone, Medicine/Pediatric, will also be starting September 1, 2023.  

 

The DaVinci Robot ribbon cutting was held June 5. The first dry run is scheduled for June 8. 

 

Ms. Richardson noted we are now in The Joint Commission survey window and the survey could 

be announced any day. She gave a shout out to the Quality Department, our leaders, and staff for 

all the continued hard work to be continuously ready. 

 

National Hospital Week was successfully celebrated the week of May 8, including the Service 

Awards dinner for staff commemorating five-year increments of service. Ms. Richardson thanked  

Human Resources for all their hard work. During Hospital Week we also hosted the Southwest 

Regional Wyoming Nurse Association Event and Awards Banquet as part of Nurse’s Week, 

inviting our nursing staff to participate. 

 

7/149



 

 

Minutes of the June 6, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

Talks continue with Castle Rock Ambulance related to providing county service. They are looking 

into the possibility of building an ambulance bay onsite at MHSC. Commissioner Slaughter 

recently completed a tour of the site. 

 

Ms. Richardson said she and Dr. Sowada just returned from the Wyoming Hospital Association 

Spring CEO and Trustee Conference in Casper. The American Hospital Association Region 8 

Meeting begins June 7 in Boise, Idaho. The Wyoming Hospital Association Board Retreat is next 

week in Pinedale. Ms. Richardson said she received an invitation to write a newspaper article for 

July 3. She will present an annual report to the County Commissioners on June 20. The Hospital 

is sponsoring the Sweetwater County Fair on August 4. Ms. Richardson invited the Trustees to 

save the date of August 29-31 for the Wyoming Hospital Association Annual Meeting in 

Cheyenne.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Quality Committee 

 

Mr. Jones stated there are always things to be improved, but that we need to celebrate all the 

improvements that have been made.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Ms. Pendleton stated all information is in the packet. She noted a new problem HR is dealing with 

regarding job abandonment. Ms. Pendleton said that in the past two months job abandonment has 

been the number one reason for staff loss. She said this is a new problem and we are looking into 

possible reasons.  

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the financial narrative and statements are in the meeting packet. 

 

FY24 Capital and Operating Budget: The motion to approve the FY24 Capital and Operating 

Budget as presented was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. Mr. Kelsey 

suggested we bring back goals for next year, including year-to-date collective cash and how it is 

measured. 

 

Capital Expenditure Request: Mr. Tardoni presented two capital expenditure requests. The motion 

to approve Capital Expenditure Request FY23-42 for single sourced Siemens MRI magnet 

upgrade, parts and maintenance for $1,157,717, as presented was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by 

Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. The motion to approve Capital Expenditure Request FY-23-50 for 

University of Utah suite renovations for $100,971.79, was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. 

Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $1,507,081, as presented was made 

by Mr. Tardoni; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

I.S. Report: Mr. Kelsey said the report is in the meeting packet.  

 

8/149



 

 

Minutes of the June 6, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information: Mr. Ron Cheese distributed a graph that he 

requested from Cerner outlining where we stood in comparison to other similar hospitals in the 

Cerner implementation process. We are at one year, where others are at four, five, or even eight 

years. Mr. Cheese noted this was a bigger project than all four previous MHSC implementations 

combined. 

 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Kelsey said information is in the meeting packet and pointed out the construction has started 

in the back by Wiley Construction. Mr. Kelsey said we have lots going on. 

 

Foundation 

 

Dr. Sowada complimented Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Executive Director, on a fabulous 

report. Ms. Marshall reported they have met with Plan One Architects on a Behavior Health Unit. 

They are still looking at space. She said the current Foundation area may work or we may need a 

new build. Ms. Marshall further reported that $750,000 has been invested in CDs in our local banks 

and that the patient entertainment upgrade is nearly ready to roll out. She said the Foundation 

Board is looking at updating the Foundation Bylaws. Ms. Marshall announced Casino Night will 

be on Saturday, August 26, at the WWCC Atrium. The Board Foundation Dinner will be on June 

14 and more information will be forthcoming. 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Ms. Pendleton stated there were no updates. 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet. Dr. Sowada noted some recent Best 

Practice Webinars talked about appointment to Board Committees and the processes that were 

used. Currently they are recommended by the Board President and approved by the Trustees. The 

Trustees agreed they were fine with the current process. 

 

Dr. Sowada questioned the timing of the annual board evaluation which usually occurs in June, 

but was not available at this time, and suggested moving it to December. Further discussion is 

needed. 

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the CEO Evaluation will be completed in the Executive Session. 

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said there is nothing to report.  

 

 

  

9/149



 

 

Minutes of the June 6, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Two new contracts were approved since last regular meeting: Spectra Laboratories and ARUP 

Laboratories. 

 

EDUCATION 

 

Mr. Tardoni shared the Wyoming Statute Title 18 Chapter 8 comparison, from five years ago to 

present. Mr. Kelsey noted it was well written and a nice review. Ms. Richardson noted we were 

adhering very well and had fine-tuned our process in the past six years. Dr. Sowada commented it 

was interesting that County Memorials were appointed. Mr. Jones said statutes leave gray areas 

and that common sense needs to prevail. Ms. Pendleton stated she saw nothing surprising. Mr. 

Tardoni noted it was with Union Pacific and the Coal Mines that insurance started. Mr. Phillips 

noted the relationship between MHSC Board and the County Commissioners has allowed 

Memorial Hospital to provide services to Sweetwater County. He stated he was extremely proud 

of the Hospital and its efforts to ensure the community has excellent care at a reasonable cost.  

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts reported the May 4 Medical Staff meeting was attended by 29 participants. She said 

Cerner has been great on the clinical side, with a presentation on documentation upcoming this 

month. Dr. Crofts said this knowledge is not only good for finance, but for patient care and provider 

hand-off. 

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Ms. Richardson stated it is the staff and everyone that works every day that makes us so successful. 

It is rewarding to come to work. She said challenges happen, but we work through them with 

compassion. She thanked staff and leadership. 

 

Mr. Jones thanked Mr. Tardoni again for his “war stories” and concepts, and said the discussions 

were valuable. Mr. Kelsey stated everyone would miss Mr. Tardoni’s stories. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session at 3:40 p.m. was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. 

Jones. Motion carried.  

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

The motion to leave executive session and return to regular session at 5:15 p.m. was made by Mr. 

Jones; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

  

10/149



 

 

Minutes of the June 6, 2023 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve the list of clinical privileges and granting appointments to the Medical Staff 

as reviewed in executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Jones. Motion 

carried. 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical 

Privileges and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from  May 9, 2023 

1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Lakshmi Balasubramanian, Hematology/Oncology 

 Dr. Paul Spilotro, Pediatrics 

 Dr. Thomas Oliver, Urology  

2. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Anish Deshmukh, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Amy Federico, Tele Radiology (VRC)  

3. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. J. Cameron Kesler, Hospitalist 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Eric Tuday, Cardiovascular Disease, (U of U) 

5. Reappointment to Non-Physician Provider Staff (2 years) 

 Brian Barton, Physician Assistant Family Medicine 

 Michael Bauer, Professional Counselor (SWCS) 
 

Approval of Contracts 

 

The motion to approve the agreements discussed during executive session and authorize the CEO 

to sign and execute the contracts was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

 

CEO Annual Evaluation and Contract 

 

The motion to approve the CEO annual evaluation and review of the CEO contract was made by 

Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Jones. It was noted there were no changes made to the contract. 

Motion carried. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:20 p.m.   

      

    

  ______________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

 
Minutes submitted by Robin Fife 

11/149



 

 

MINUTES FROM A SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND 

THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL FOUNDATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

Wednesday, June 21, 2023 

 

Present:  Dr.  Barbara Sowada  

Mr. Marty Kelsey  

Ms. Irene Richardson  

Mr. Matt Jackman  

Mr. Taylor Jones  

Mr. Justin Spicer  

Dr. Joseph Oliver  

Ms. Becky Costantino  

Mr. Craig Rood  

Ms. Tiffany Kindel  

Ms. Gina Harvey  

 

Excused: Ms. Kandi Pendleton  

 

 

Call to Order, Roll Call & Establishing Quorum, Reading of Mission Statement 
 

Mr. Jackman established a quorum of the Foundation for the purpose of starting the meeting.  

 

Remarks from the Trustee President 

 

Dr. Sowada greeted the Trustees and Directors and thanked everyone for attending. She 

welcomed Mr. Craig Rood to the Sweetwater County Board of Trustees as he had been 

appointed the day prior.  

 

Dr. Sowada explained that she wanted to hold a joint meeting because it was the end of the fiscal 

year and the Trustees wanted to thank the Foundation Board for their work and contributions to 

help the Hospital move forward noting the SLIB grants, the daVinci robot, and the Red Tie 

Gala’s success.  

 

Dr. Sowada recognized Ms. Richardson for being a great leader of the Hospital and friend to the 

community.  

 

Dr. Sowada presented her report of a year in review of the Hospital which touched on services, 

CMS, health insurance, and financials. She explained that the Hospital is one of the few hospitals 

nationwide that didn’t have staff layoffs or reduce services throughout the pandemic.  

 

  

12/149



 

 

 

Minutes of the June 21, 2023 Board of Trustees and Foundation Board of Directors Special Meeting 

Page 2 

 

Remarks from the Foundation President 

 

Mr. Jackman seconded Dr. Sowada’s remarks that the Hospital did amazing things in the past 12 

months and that he was thrilled that the Foundation was able to be a part of it.  

 

Mr. Jackman presented his report of a year in review noting that the Foundation was happy to 

support the daVinci robot by dedicating the Red Tie Gala and the upcoming Casino Night’s 

profits to the project, as well as the upcoming Lab Renovation and Expansion Project. He briefly 

reviewed the financial breakdown showing that the Foundation supported the Hospital’s 

initiatives through either direct or indirect support amounting to $12.49M in the fiscal year. 

 

Mr. Jackman reported that in addition to financial support, the Foundation also executed key 

projects including the donor wall implementation, the Guardian Angel Project, and the Not-for-

Profit Healthcare presentations that Ms. Marshall presented within the community.  

 

FY23 Hospital Report 

 

Ms. Richardson thanked both the Trustees and Board of Directors for their support and 

dedication to the Hospital. She reported that it’s been a great year for both boards and that she 

enjoys working with both boards. She thanked the Foundation for committing money to the robot 

as well as the lab project.  

 

Ms. Richardson explained that the community is seeing what the Foundation is doing and feels 

that will generate more future donations. 

 

Ms. Richardson reported that she couldn’t be more grateful for the Trustees as they are 

supportive, and they all work very well together. She’s also very excited about the upcoming 

projects that will improve the Hospital. 

 

Ms. Richardson presented her report outlining some key successes of the Hospital over the past 

year including refinancing the series 2013 bonds to save $5M, increased quality measures, 

decreased age of plant, additions to the medical staff, an annual review by the numbers, and the 

implementation of the robot.  

 

FY23 Foundation Report 
 

Ms. Marshall explained that Mr. Jackman reported on the previous 12 months, so she wanted to 

give the Trustees a look at what was coming up.  

 

Ms. Marshall explained that she was excited for the lab project to break ground. She reported 

that through one of the Foundation’s strategic pillars, she wanted to have a small capital 

campaign in the upcoming year to really generate community support and allow the community 

to have a true piece of the project.  

 

13/149



 

 

 

Minutes of the June 21, 2023 Board of Trustees and Foundation Board of Directors Special Meeting 

Page 3 

 

Ms. Marshall reported that another strategic pillar was to increase organizational awareness and 

that she would be evaluating the current donation portal to determine if there was a more user-

friendly process. She also explained that one of her goals was to work with local businesses and 

industries to build internal giving programs for employees to support the Hospital. 

 

Ms. Marshall reported the Foundation recently invested in some CDs totaling $750K with 

staggered maturity dates. She explained that she hopes the Foundation Board of Directors will 

continue looking into investments so that we can capitalize on good interest rates.  

 

Other Business 

 

Ms. Marshall apologized to Mr. Jones for not having a report on the agenda for him, as the 

Trustee Liaison to the Foundation, and asked if he would like to provide a report. 

 

Mr. Jones reported that he was glad to have the joint meeting as we’ve been talking about it for a 

few months. He also reported that he enjoys being on both boards and that each board has a great 

purpose, and they complement each other well.  

 

Mr. Spicer asked the meeting attendees about the Trustee Liaison position and if we needed to 

discuss having two Trustees on the Foundation Board of Directors and how that would work. 

Both the Trustees and the Directors discussed how that would look moving forward, but the 

discussion ultimately ended with Dr. Sowada reporting that she’d like to think about that a little 

more as the Trustee President.  

 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned.  

 

Meeting Minutes submitted by: Tiffany Marshall 

 

    

    

  ______________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 
 

14/149



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: July 5, 2023 
 
Topic for New Business Items: 

Success/Talent Management Plan  
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ___X__Revision 
 ___  __New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 

The Success/Talent Management Plan was revised to update the policy and to 
include additional language regarding talent management and mentoring.     
 
Board Committee Action: 

This policy was discussed and revised in the Governance Committee.  The 
committee did their diligence in ensuring that this is a sound and good policy.  

The policy was presented to the full Board of Trustees at the June 6, 2023, 
meeting for first review.  

Policy or Other Document: 

     _____  For Review Only 
 ___X_  For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ______  In House Comments:  N/A 
 ______  Board  Comments:  N/A 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation:  Irene Richardson, CEO, recommends that 
the Board review the Success/Talent Management Plan.  

15/149



DRAFT

S Draft PS ID 13764584

A N/A

R D N/A

D
A

A

Susson/ Tlnt Mnmnt Pln - Snor Lrsp
Pln

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

DEFINITIONS

TEXT
I. TEMPORARY ABSENCE

A. Tmporry, Unplnn Asn: Sort-Trm

1. A             
  (-)        S
L   . A      
,      ,    , 
 .

2. I         CEO,  A  C
(AOC)     B P    

L         M H  S C (MHSC).
C  S L        . T
     MHSC   S L     
     ,   -. MHSC      
                
 .

Atn – S      S L

Intrm – F     S L         
    

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 5

16/149



DRAFT

. A     ,  P     
   B  T (B)    
          B 
. T B    A CEO.

3. I         S L,  CEO 
         
        CEO  ,

B. Tmporry, Unplnn Asn: Lon-Trm

1. A -           
  (-). T     
        -   
.

2. I     CEO,  B  T   
,     I CEO,   
       S L. T  
          I CEO 
          (3) .
F,              I
CEO     S L.

II. INTERIM POSITIONS

A. Intrm Poston Assnmnt

1. T           
     /    
 S L .

CEO CNO, CFO, CCO

CFO A   CEO

CNO A   CEO

CCO A   CEO

CMO A   CEO

2. T   I        
    .

B. Tlnt Mnmnt n Mntorn

1. T CEO  S L     
         
   :

P: I:

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 5

17/149



DRAFT

. C,   .

. P  : ,   
.

. C   .

. H    .

. V   .

. I,   

. P   ,   
  .

. E . L  .

. C,          

. I . P    -
   .

C. Autorty n Compnston o t Intrm CEO

1. T       CEO . T 
  I/A CEO       
       CEO.

2. T    I/A CEO     
E O  C C    
B.

D. Autorty n Compnston o t Intrm Snor Lr

1. T       S L
. T    I/A S L  
          
 S L.

2. T    /A S L     
CEO.

E. Bor Ovrst

1. T B ()        I/
A CEO      E O  C
C   B.

2. T E O  C C   
       IA CEO   
 .

F. Communtons Pln

1. I     ,    
   I/A CEO,  B P  
 F B ,  ,   
     CEO   U  U H S

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 5

18/149



DRAFT
A S

Step Description Approver Date

    .

2. A      I/A CEO    
 ,  I/A CEO   
        
 .

G. Complton o Sort-Trm Asn

1. T      CEO   MHSC  
   B P      CEO.

2. T          
. A           , 
   B P,        -
 .

III. PERMANENT ABSENCE

A. Prmnnt Dprtur or Plnn Rtrmnt: CEO

1. I  CEO'          ,
 B  T    S C  30  
   .

2. T           
.

3. T B          .
C        
     .

B. Prmnnt Dprtur or Plnn Rtrmnt: Snor Lr

1. I  S L'         
,  CEO       ,  
  .

REFERENCES

Sponsorn Dprtmnt: Bor Govrnn Commtt - Approv D

D  O: M 2015

D  L R: M 2015

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 5

19/149



DRAFT

G K: C E
O

01/2017

H

Drt sv y Quknn, Kr: C Clnl Or  3/9/2018, 5:19PM EST

Drt sr y Quknn, Kr: C Clnl Or  12/26/2018, 3:35PM EST

Drt sv y F, Ron: Clnl Amnstrtv Assstnt  6/5/2023, 2:20PM EDT

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 5

20/149



DRAFT

S Draft PS ID 13764584

A N/A

R D N/A

D
A

A

Susson/ Tlnt Mnmnt Pln - Snor Lrsp Pln

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

DEFINITIONS

TEXT

I. TEMPORARY ABSENCE

A. Tmporry, Unplnn Asn: Sort-Trm

1. A                (-
)        S L   . A   
   ,      ,    ,   .

2. I         CEO,  VP  C SA  C (AOC)
    B CP     . A     ,
 CP         B  T (B)   
           B  . T B
   A CEO.

3. I         S L,  CEO     
              CEO 
,

B. Tmporry, Unplnn Asn: Lon-Trm

1. A -              (-).
T              -   
.

2. I     CEO,  B  DT    , 
   I CEO,           S

L         M H  S C (MHSC). C  S L  

     . T      MHSC   S L 

         ,   -. MHSC          

              .

Atn – S      S L

Intrm – F     S L              

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 4

21/149



DRAFT

L. T             I CEO   
        (3) . F,         
    I CEO     S L.

II. INTERIM POSITIONS

A. Intrm Poston Assnmnt

1. T               
 /      S L .

CEO COO    VP  C S

CFO C

VP N A N D

VP C S CEO

S VP CEO  D  H R

COO S VP   L C

CEO CNO, CFO, CCO

CFO A   CEO

CNO A   CEO

CCO A   CEO

CMO A   CEO

2. T   I            
:.

B. Tlnt Mnmnt n Mntorn

1. T CEO  S L        
          :

. C,   .

. P  : ,    .

. C   .

. H    .

. V   .

. I,   

. P   ,     
.

. E . L  .

. C,          

. I . P    -    .

C. Autorty n Compnston o t Intrm CEO

1. T       CEO . T    I/A
CEO               CEO.

2. T    I/A CEO      E O 
C C     B.

D. Autorty n Compnston o t Intrm Snor Lr

1. T       S L . T   
I/A S L            

P: I:

P: I:

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 4

22/149



DRAFT
A S

Step Description Approver Date

H

  S L.

2. T    /A S L      CEO.

E. Bor Ovrst

1. T B ()        I/A CEO   
  E O  C C   B.

2. T E O  C C         
 IIA CEO     .

F. Communtons Pln

1. I     ,       
I/A CEO,  B C (  P    F B
)    F B ,  ,     
   CEO   U  U H S     .

2. A      I/A CEO      ,  B
   I/A CEO        
     .

G. Complton o Sort-Trm AsnAsn

1. T      CEO   MHSC      B
CP      CEO.

2. T           . A    
      ,     B CP,     
  - .

III. PERMANENT ABSENCE

A. Prmnnt Dprtur or Plnn Rtrmnt: CEO

1. I  CEO'          ,  B  D
T    S C  30      .

2. T            .

3. T B          . C   
          .

B. Prmnnt Dprtur or Plnn Rtrmnt: Snor Lr

1. I  S L'          ,  CEO 
     ,     .

REFERENCES

Sponsorn Dprtmnt: Bor Govrnn Commtt - Approv D

D  O: M 2015

D  L R: M 2015

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 4

23/149



DRAFT

Drt sv y Quknn, Kr: C Clnl Or  3/9/2018, 5:19PM EST

Drt sr y Quknn, Kr: C Clnl Or  12/26/2018, 3:35PM EST

Drt sv y F, Ron: Clnl Amnstrtv Assstnt  6/5/2023, 2:20PM EDT

Succession/ Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13764584/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 4

24/149



25/149



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: 7/5/2023 
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: Infection Preventionist Letter of Approval for 

Appointment 
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ______ Revision 
 ____X__ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: Corey Worden currently holds the Infection 
Preventionist Position. According to the Joint Commission Standards, this position 
requires leadership and Board appointment and approval. The appointment was 
not approved in the Infection Control Committee as it was not required. Thank 
you for considering approving the recommendation. 
Ann Marie Clevenger DNP, RN 

 

 Board Committee Action: No committee action. 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     _______ For Review Only 
 _____X__ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ____N/A___ In House Comments: 
 _______ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: Please accept the letter of recommendation 
for Corey Worden as Infection Preventionist at MHSC, with direct oversight from 
Noreen Hove MSN, RN, CNOR and Dr. Karn. 
 

26/149



27/149



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: July 5th, 2023   
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items:  
 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan  
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ___X__ Revision 
 ______ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments:  
Minimal revisions made to the content of the document. The following statement 
was added under the Confidentiality section of the document: “The Joint 
Commission is an independent contractor. Any event reported to The Joint 
Commission is performed under the auspice of the Quality Committee”. The 
document is thorough, comprehensive, and meets regulatory standards.  
 

 Board Committee Action:  
Approved by Quality Committee of the Board  
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ___X___   For Review Only 
 At August Meeting  For Board Action  
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ___X___ In House Comments: 
 _______ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Recommendation for review and approval. 

28/149



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 13563708 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

General - 
Housewide 

Reg. 
Standards 

CMS A-0263,
CMS A-0273,
CMS A-0283,
CMS A-0286,
CMS A-0297,
CMS A-0308,
CMS A-0309,
CMS A-0411,
CMS A-0508,
TJC 
LD.01.03.01,
TJC 
LD.01.05.01,
TJC 
LD.02.01.01,
TJC 
LD.02.02.01,
TJC 
LD.02.04.01,
TJC 
LD.03.01.01,
TJC 
LD.03.02.01,
TJC 
LD.03.03.01,
TJC 
LD.03.04.01,
TJC 
LD.03.05.01,
TJC 
LD.03.06.01,
TJC 
LD.03.07.01,
TJC 
LD.03.09.01,
TJC 
LD.03.10.01,
TJC 
PI.01.01.01,
TJC 
PI.02.01.01,
TJC 
PI.03.01.01,
TJC 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan 

Mission 

Compassionate care for every life we touch 

Vision 

To be our community's trusted healthcare leader 

Values 

Be Kind, Be Accountable, Be Respectful, Embrace Excellence, Work 
Collaboratively 

 

Introduction 

Definitions 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) is committed to providing compassionate, high-quality 
care with a strong culture of safety for the best patient outcomes. Our objective is to support a culture of 
safety for our patients and staff. This culture allows us to consistently identify opportunities to improve 
performance and increase safety while maintaining a commitment to responsible stewardship of 
resources as aligned with MHSC's mission, vision, values, and strategic objectives. 

Performance improvement – The systematic process of detecting and analyzing performance problems, 
designing and developing interventions to address the problems, implementing the interventions, 
evaluating the results, and sustaining improvement. 

Patient safety - The prevention of errors and adverse effects to patients that are associated with health 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 15

29/149



DRAFT

Purpose 

Scope 

Objectives 

I. To guide development and implementation of data collection processes that support 
performance improvement. Data are fundamental components of all performance 
improvement processes. Data can be obtained from internal sources (for example, 
documentation, records, staff, patients, observations, and risk assessments) or external 
sources (for example, regulatory organizations, insurers, and the community). The purpose of 
data collection is to ensure that data necessary to identify, address, and monitor areas for 
improvement are available.  

II. To guide development and implementation of data analysis processes that support 
performance improvement. Collected data must be analyzed to be useful. The purpose of data 
analysis is to determine the status of the hospital’s quality of care and to inform any plans for 
improvement. 

III. To guide development and implementation of performance improvement processes that 

care. Patient Safety Plan 

Quality - A person-centered commitment to excellence, consistently using best practice to achieve the 
best outcomes for our patients and community. 

MHSC uses the following terminology interchangeably: quality improvement and performance 
improvement. 

The Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan provides guidelines for collecting, 
analyzing, and using data to identify, address, and monitor performance to continually improve the 
quality of care provided by the hospital.  The PIPS Plan encompasses a multidisciplinary and integrated 
approach and is designed to include Leadership, Medical Staff, employees, and the Board of Trustees to 
collaboratively identify, plan, implement and sustain improvement. The previously identified parties 
assess processes, initiate peer review activities, and take appropriate actions that will improve the 
processes and/or systems, in an effort to improve outcomes within the organization. The PIPS Plan is 
approved annually by the Board of Trustees. Functions of the PIPS Plan include expressing the 
foundational concepts that form the basis for MHSC's performance improvement and patient safety 
efforts. In addition, the PIPS Plan outlines the structure and processes that MHSC has developed as a 
framework for participation in performance improvement across the organization. 

The PIPS Plan is organization wide and applies to all departments, care, treatment, and services settings 
(including those services furnished under contract or arrangement). This includes Hospital inpatient and 
outpatient services, as well as Sweetwater Memorial Clinics. (Appendix 1 – PIPS Committee Reporting 
Calendar) 

The objective of the PIPS Plan is to allow for a systematic, coordinated, and continuous approach for 
improving performance. (Appendix 4 – PIPS Documentation Tool) 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 15

30/149



DRAFT

increase safety and quality. All performance improvement activities must be based on relevant 
data collected and analyzed according to hospital policies and procedures. Performance 
improvement is a continual process. Performance improvement aims to ensure that the safest, 
highest-quality care is provided to all patients at all times. 

Organization and Accountability 

I. The responsibilities of the Board of Trustees, as they relate to the PIPS Plan, include: 

A. Oversee that quality and safety are at the core of the organization's mission 

B. Oversee that quality and safety values are embedded in guiding the organization's 
strategic plan 

C. Oversee that adequate resources (staff, time, information systems, and training) are 
allocated to data collection and performance improvement 

D. Oversee the Hospital's ongoing monitoring, maintenance, and improvement efforts 
for safe, high - quality, and efficient medical care 

E. Monitor appropriate data collection processes, including methods, frequency, and 
details 

1. By approving the PIPS Plan and accepting dashboard reports and other 
reports addressing specific metrics, the Board approves data definitions 
and frequency and detail of data collection.  The Board authorizes 
applicable quality oversight committees to adjust data definitions and data 
frequency as deemed necessary so long as revisions ensure performance 
improvement processes are in no way hindered and applicable definitions 
and frequency are consistent with national, state, or local reporting 
requirements. Based on its oversight responsibilities and at its discretion, 
the Board, may at any time require changes in either frequency or detail of 
data collection. 

a. Frequency of data collection and reporting is determined on a 
case-by-case basis with consideration to improvement priorities, 
sample size necessary for adequate review, and resource 
consideration 

F. Assess the effectiveness of the PIPS Plan 

G. Review and approve the PIPS Plan annually 

H. Participate in education regarding the methods of quality management and 
performance improvement 

The PIPS Plan shall involve the coordinated efforts of the Board of Trustees, Senior Leadership Team, 
Medical Staff, Department Directors, Supervisors, Clinical Coordinators, and staff of the various MHSC 
departments and committees. Every employee is responsible for participating in performance 
improvement activities, as appropriate to their job duties. Engagement in quality improvement activities 
is an expectation at MHSC. Activities are prioritized by the PIPS Committee and Medical Staff, with input 
from the Quality Committee of the Board. 

Board of Trustees 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 15

31/149



DRAFT

I. Receive reports of indicators and performance of processes as outlined in this plan 

J. Receive regular reports regarding all departments with direct and indirect patient 
care services and ensure these are monitored, problems are identified and 
prioritized, and appropriate action is implemented 

I. The Senior Leadership Team is comprised of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Medical 
Officer (CMO), Chief Nursing Officer (CNO), Chief Clinical Officer (CCO), and Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO). 

II. Oversight of a PIPS Plan capable of continuous improvement is a task accomplished in an 
environment fostered by Senior Leadership support. The Senior Leadership Team's 
commitment includes taking accountability for the PIPS Plan's effectiveness and ensuring the 
PIPS Plan requirements are integrated into organizational processes. In addition, the 
commitment includes recognizing the importance of meeting patient needs and the various 
requirements of statutes and regulations that surround and permeate the organization. 

III. The responsibilities of the Senior Leadership Team as they relate to the PIPS Plan include: 

A. Support the implementation, execution, and oversight of this quality framework 

B. Set the scope, priorities, guidelines, and parameters for the PIPS Plan 

C. Align the PIPS Plan with strategic priorities 

D. Set expectations for using data and information 

E. Set priorities for and identify the frequency of data collection and performance 
improvement that include but are not limited to the following: 

1. High-volume processes 

2. High-risk processes 

3. Problem-prone processes 

F. Set priorities for performance improvement based on the following considerations: 

1. Incidence 

2. Prevalence 

3. Severity 

G. Prioritize and ensure that adequate resources (staff, time, information systems, and 
training) are allocated to data collection and performance improvement 

H. Update this plan to reflect any changes, including but not limited to, changes in the 
following: 

1. Strategic priorities 

2. Internal or external environment (such as patient population, community 
health metrics, and so on) 

I. Ensure the PIPS Plan is cohesive and feasible 

J. Periodically approve flexibility and variation in department and committee - 

Senior Leadership Team 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 15

32/149



DRAFT

scheduled reports, in extenuating circumstances as necessary 

K. Ensure accreditation standards adherence 

L. Motivate and support staff to achieve PIPS objectives 

M. Evaluate the effectiveness of the hospital’s use of data and information 

N. Monitor the effectiveness of the PIPS Plan and the achievement of results 

O. Ensure appropriate follow-up of identified corrective actions not resulting in 
expected or sustained improvement 

P. Communicate the PIPS Plan to staff and the community 

I. The responsibilities of the Quality Department as they relate to the PIPS Plan include: 

A. Serve as a resource for performance improvement, patient safety, patient 
experience, and regulatory information 

B. Educate MHSC staff about the performance improvement process, patient safety, 
and patient experience 

C. Support staff, including Medical Staff, Leadership, and project leaders, in the 
development and implementation of performance improvement activities, including 
team building and data analysis 

D. Assist with and assure data gathering efforts are valid, reliable, and comprehensive 

E. Attend designated Medical Staff committee meetings and facilitate performance 
improvement processes 

F. Provide accurate and reliable data for Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation 
(OPPE) profiles for assessment of Medical Staff members 

G. Promote consistency in performance improvement activities 

I. The Medical Staff provides expertise in meeting appropriate clinical goals, objectives, and 
initiatives for patient care. The responsibilities of the Medical Staff as they relate to the PIPS 
Plan include: 

A. Provide clinical input for targets related to clinical outcomes 

B. Carry out tasks to meet the objectives of the PIPS Plan 

C. Reviews reports to ensure measures are reaching agreed-upon targets in Medical 
Staff meetings 

D. Act upon identified areas for improvement 

E. Provide effective mechanisms to measure, assess, and improve the quality and 
appropriateness of patient care, and the clinical performance of all individuals with 
delineated clinical privileges, accomplished through Ongoing Professional Practice 
Evaluations (OPPE), Focused Professional Practice Evaluations (FPPE), and Peer 
Review Process (refer to Professional Practice Review Process – Medical Staff Peer 
Review) 

Quality Department 

Medical Staff 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 15

33/149



DRAFT

I. The Leadership Team is comprised of department directors, supervisors, and clinical 
coordinators. The responsibilities of the Leadership Team, as they relate to the PIPS Plan, 
include: 

A. Utilize performance improvement processes to support MHSC's mission, vision, and 
values 

B. Participate in the collection and analysis of relevant departmental data 

C. Foster a climate of continuous improvement through measurement, data 
analysis, identification, and implementation of changes needed to improve and 
ensure sustainment 

D. Monitor processes known to jeopardize the safety or clinical outcomes of patients 

E. Implement and maintain processes to ensure compliance with applicable 
requirement(s) or standard(s) 

F. Ensure services provided are consistent with MHSC's values and goal of consistently 
providing person-centered care 

G. Document improvement initiatives and progress 

H. Present department performance improvement project updates to PIPS Committee 
as requested and/or scheduled (Appendix 5 - PIPS Reporting Presentation Template) 

I. The responsibilities of the Project Teams, Department Employees, and Volunteers as they 
relate to the PIPS Plan include 

A. Participate in data collection and analysis activities as well as performance 
improvement activities 

B. Identify and utilize approaches for improving processes and outcomes to 
continuously improve the quality and safety of patient care 

C. Performance improvement project teams may be formed according to employee 
identification of improvements and prioritization 

D. Document improvement initiatives and progress (Appendix 4 - PIPS Documentation 
Tool) 

E. Report improvement initiatives to PIPS Committee as requested or scheduled 
(Appendix 5 - PIPS Reporting Presentation Template) 

I. The PIPS Committee oversees the establishment,  implementation, and monitoring of the PIPS 
Plan. The core PIPS Committee shall be comprised of Senior Leadership, Director of Medical 
Office Building Clinics, Director of Acute Care Services, Director of Emergency Services, 
Infection Prevention, Director of Surgical Services, Director of Medical Imaging, Director of 
Women's Health, Director of Pharmacy, Director of Cardiopulmonary, Director of Environmental 
Services, Director of Lab, Director of Nutrition Services, Director of Rehab Services, Director of 
Care Management, Director of Education, Director of Dialysis, Director of Medical Oncology, 

Leadership Team 

Project Teams, Staff, and Volunteers 

PIPS Committee Functions 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 6 of 15

34/149



DRAFT

Director of Radiation Oncology, Quality Department, Medical Staff Representative, Security, 
Emergency Management Coordinator, Family Medicine/Occupational Medicine Clinic 
Representative and Patient Safety Representative. Other representatives may attend based on 
identified priorities. 

A. Provide an organization-wide program to systematically measure, assess, and 
improve performance to achieve optimal patient outcomes in a collaborative, 
multidisciplinary, cross-departmental approach 

B. Support activities to promote patient safety and encourage a reduction in 
preventable harm, in collaboration with the Patient Safety Committee 

C. Provide a mechanism to foster collaborative efforts for performance improvement, 
feedback, and learning throughout the organization while assigning responsibilities 
and authority for these processes 

D. Implement all Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and other 
regulatory bodies' quality management and performance improvement standards 
and maintain accreditation and required certifications 

E. Oversee compliance with accreditation standards and support resolution of 
noncompliance through action plans in coordination with the Continual Survey 
Readiness Committee 

F. Coordinate schedule for department and committee reports 

G. Prioritize improvement projects to address processes based on the following: 

1. Focus on high-risk, high-volume, or problem-prone areas 

2. Consider the incidence, prevalence, and severity of the problems in those 
areas 

3. Affect on health outcomes, patient safety, and quality of care 

4. Additional factors such as resource allocation and accreditation/
regulatory requirements 

5. Utilize a prioritization scoring tool to assist in determining the distinct 
number of improvement projects annually (Appendix 3 - Proposed 
Performance Improvement Project Decision Checklist) 

H. Ensure performance improvement projects incorporate the needs and expectations 
of patients and families 

I. Monitor the status of identified and prioritized performance improvement projects 
and action plans by ensuring additional data collection and analysis is performed to 
assure improvement or problem resolution on a sustained basis 

J. Identify corrective actions not resulting in expected or sustained improvement 

K. Ensure proper continuation of the cycle of creating, implementing, monitoring, and 
evaluating improvement efforts 

L. Identify annual data elements collected on an ongoing basis to prioritize focus areas 
for performance improvement 

M. Review and approve the PIPS Plan each year prior to submitting to the Quality 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 7 of 15

35/149



DRAFT

Committee of the Board 

N. Oversee annual evaluation of performance improvement project priorities and goals 

O. Oversee annual evaluation of PIPS Plan objectives, scope, and effectiveness, and 
evaluate progress towards strategic plan goals related to quality, safety, and patient 
experience 

P. Communicate information concerning quality, patient safety, and patient experience 
to departments when opportunities to improve exist 

Q. Report, in writing, to leadership on issues and interventions related to adequacy of 
staffing, including nurse staffing. This occurs at least once a year. 

R. Report appropriate information regarding quality, patient safety, patient experience, 
and accreditation to Senior Leadership, Medical Executive Committee (MEC), Quality 
Committee of the Board, and the Board of Trustees to provide leaders with the 
information they need in fulfilling their responsibilities concerning the quality and 
safety of patient care 

1. Specifically, the committee provides data on Multidrug-resistant 
organisms (MDROs), Central line-associated blood stream infection 
(CLABSI), Catheter associated urinary tract infection (CAUTI), 
Clostridioides difficile (CDI), Surgical site infection (SSI) to key 
stakeholders, including but not limited to the following: 

a. Leaders 

b. Licensed independent practitioners 

c. Nursing staff 

d. Other clinicians 

S. Provide reports to the Quality Committee of the Board regarding results of 
performance improvement activities 

I. Risk Management is undertaken by the Quality Department, in collaboration with multiple other 
departments, to identify, evaluate and reduce risk or loss to patients, employees, visitors, and 
the hospital. The PIPS Committee may assist with quality improvement opportunities 
identified for risk reduction and performance improvement. 

I. MHSC is committed to encouraging, promoting, and supporting a culture of safety throughout 
the organization. The purpose of the organizational Patient Safety Program is to improve 
patient safety and reduce risk to patients through an environment that encourages: 

A. Recognition and acknowledgment of risks to patients with regard to medical/health 
care errors 

B. Initiation of actions to reduce these risks 

C. Internal reporting of what has been found and the actions taken 

D. Focus on processes and systems 

Risk/Compliance 

Safety 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 8 of 15

36/149



DRAFT

E. Minimization of individual blame or retribution for involvement in a medical/health 
care error 

F. Organizational learning about medical/health care error 

G. Support for the sharing of knowledge to effect behavioral changes in itself and other 
healthcare organizations 

H. Appropriate communication and transparency to our patients and families 

II.  Please refer to the Patient Safety Plan for further information. Patient Safety Plan 

Methodology 

I. Performance improvement project teams will use data to determine how action plans are 
developed and will define the frequency of data collection 

Data 

I. By approving the PIPS Plan and accepting dashboard reports and other reports addressing 
specific metrics, the Board approves data definitions, along with frequency and detail of data 
collection.  The Board authorizes applicable quality oversight committees to adjust data 
definitions and frequency of data collection as deemed necessary, so long as revisions ensure 
performance improvement processes are in no way hindered and applicable definitions and 
frequency are consistent with national, state, or local reporting requirements. Based on its 
oversight responsibilities and at its discretion, the Board may, at any time require changes in 
either frequency or detail of data collection. 

A. Frequency of data collection and reporting is determined on a case-by case basis 
with consideration to improvement priorities, sample size necessary for adequate 
review, and resources consideration 

II. Data Collection 

A. The PIPS Committee has identified acceptable data sources for performance 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County utilizes processes outlined by the Institute for Healthcare 
Improvement (IHI) Model for Improvement, developed by Associates in Process Improvement. This 
model for improvement includes forming a team, setting aims, and establishing measures, along with 
selecting, testing, implementing, and spreading changes. The Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA) Model is used 
to guide tests of change within and throughout the organization. Specific, Measurable, Achievable, 
Realistic, and Time-bound (S.M.A.R.T) goals are encouraged to be utilized when appropriate in setting 
aims and smart objectives. (See Appendix 4-PIPS Documentation Tool and Appendix 7 – IHI's Model for 
Improvement) Performance improvement teams may use other evidence-based methodologies and 
tools as appropriate based on the complexity, scope, and scale of the improvement project. 

MHSC continually seeks to identify changes that will lead to improved quality and patient safety. 
Annually, each department/discipline shall develop indicators for performance improvement based on 
their identified improvement project. Whenever possible, data collection is a shared activity involving 
staff. The collected data may be organized and analyzed with the assistance of the Quality Department, 
if necessary. 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 9 of 15

37/149



DRAFT

monitoring and improvement activity. Data sources and mechanisms of identifying 
opportunities for improvement include, but are not limited to: 

1. Risk Assessments 

2. Reports and/or alerts from governmental agencies (for example, Centers 
for Disease Control and Prevention, Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration, Food and Drug Administration) 

3. Accreditation reports 

4. Regulatory rounds and tracers 

5. Culture of Safety survey 

6. Occurrence reports and Good Catches identifying patient safety concerns 
and trends 

7. Staff reporting safety or process concerns to their leaders 

8. RCA (Root Cause Analysis) 

9. FMEA (Failure Mode Effects Analysis) 

10. Patient complaints/grievances 

11. Patient perception of safety and quality 

12. Peer review 

13. Ongoing medical record review 

14. Audit of clinical contracts 

15. Internal audits identifying improvement opportunities 

16. Sentinel event reports and Joint Commission Sentinel Event alerts 

17. Hospital Quality Improvement Contractor (HQIC) 

B. The PIPS Committee collaborates with department managers to perform the 
following activities: 

1. Collect data required by CMS Conditions of Participation and The Joint 
Commission including measures from: 

a. Inpatient Quality Reporting 

b. Outpatient Quality Reporting 

c. Value Based Purchasing 

d. Hospital Readmission Reduction Program 

e. Hospital Acquired Condition Reduction Program 

f. Quality Payment Program – Merit Based Incentive Payment 

g. Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and 
Systems (HCAHPS) 

h. The Joint Commission ORYX Measures 

2. Collect data on the following: 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 10 of 15

38/149



DRAFT

a. Improvement priorities, as identified by leadership 

b. Selected outcome indicators (mortality, readmissions, etc.) 

c. Procedures, including operative procedures, that place patient at 
risk of disability or death 

d. Clinically significant unexpected postoperative diagnoses, as 
determined by the medical staff 

e. Blood and blood components use 

f. Use of restraints 

g. Use of seclusion 

h. Patient safety issues (ex: falls, self harm) 

i. Resuscitative services, including the following elements: 

i. Number and location of cardiac arrests 

ii. Outcomes of resuscitation, such as return of 
spontaneous circulation (ROSC) and/or survival to 
discharge 

iii. Transfer to higher level of care 

j. Pain assessment and pain management 

k. Rapid response to change or deterioration in a patient condition 

l. Care or services to high-risk populations (patient falls) 

m. National Patient Safety Goals 

n. CMS preventable conditions (Hospital-Acquired Conditions) 

o. Healthcare-associated infections (SSI, CLABSI, CAUTI, MRSA, 
MDRO, C.diff) 

p. AHRQ Patient Safety Indicators (PSI) 

q. Reported and confirmed transfusion reactions 

r. Changing internal or external (e.g. Joint Commission Sentinel 
Event Alerts) conditions 

s. MRI incidents/injuries 

t. Significant adverse drug reactions 

u. Significant medication errors 

v. Adverse events or patterns of adverse events during moderate 
or deep sedation and anesthesia 

w. Complications of care 

3. Collect data on topics in the following areas: 

a. Environment of care 

b. Infection prevention and control 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 11 of 15

39/149



DRAFT

c. Medication management system 

d. Resuscitation performance, including but not limited to the 
following elements: 

i. Frequency of early warning signs being present prior 
to cardiac arrest 

ii. Timeliness of staff response to cardiac arrest 

iii. Quality of cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) 

iv. Post–cardiac arrest care processes 

v. Outcomes following cardiac arrest 

e. Organ procurement program (conversion rates) 

f. Adequacy of staffing, including nurse staffing, in relation to 
undesirable patterns, trends, or variations in performance 

g. Incidents related to overexposure to radiation during diagnostic 
computed tomography examinations 

4. Include the following information when recording data: 

a. Data source 

b. Collection frequency 

c. Reporting frequency 

d. Report audience 

e. Responsible department(s) 

f. Indicators for intervention 

III. Data Reliability and Validity 

A. Collected data need to be accurate, complete, and reliable. The PIPS Committee has 
established the following expectations for any data used to monitor or improve 
hospital performance: 

1. Data samples will undergo auditing 

2. Data sources will be regularly checked using established procedures 

3. Re-abstraction will occur on a data sample 

IV. Data Analysis 

A. The PIPS Committee does the following: 

1. Engages the assistance of relevant departmental management and/or 
staff to collect and analyze data 

2. Develops goals and benchmarks in conjunction with stakeholders with 
attention to past performance, national performance data, external 
benchmarks, or comparative databases 

3. Compares internal data over time to identify levels of performance, pattern 
or trends in performance, and variations in performance 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 12 of 15

40/149



DRAFT

4. Utilizes statistical tools and techniques to measure, analyze, and display 
data (e.g., run charts, flow charts and control charts). Preferred PIPS data 
displays include dashboards, run charts, and control charts, as applicable 

5. Analyzes data using methods that are appropriate to the type of data and 
the desired metrics, which include but are not limited to: 

a. Benchmark: a comparison and measurement of a health care 
organization's metrics against other national health care 
organizations. MHSC utilizes the National Average when 
available. 

b. Target Goal (SMART Goal): targeted goals define interim steps 
towards the stretch goal. Target goals may change frequently as 
progress is made toward stretch goal.  Target goals help form a 
concrete plan of action in order to make the stretch goal a 
reality. 

c. Stretch Goal: inspires us to think big and reminds us to focus on 
the larger picture. This goal should exceed the benchmark. 
MHSC utilizes the National Top 10% when available. 

6. Analyzes aggregate data to identify opportunities for improvement and 
actions to improve the quality of processes 

Communication 

I. To communicate changes made based on data analysis and to sustain improvements, 
performance improvement is communicated through the following resources (Appendix 6 - 
Communication Plan): 

A. Quality Committee of the Board 

B. PIPS Committee 

C. Leadership meetings 

D. Medical Staff meetings 

E. Staff meetings 

F. Department white boards, electronic communication, and communication books 
may be utilized to display results of monitoring and internal performance 
improvement activities 

Confidentiality 

I. WY Stat 35-2-910. Quality management function for health care facilities; confidentiality; 
immunity; whistle blowing; peer review. Subsection A. 

II. All quality and patient safety data, materials, and information are private and confidential, shall 
be considered the property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, and as such is 
protected by state and federal health care quality statutes. 

III. Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 13 of 15

41/149



DRAFT

keeping with hospital policy and state and federal regulations governing the confidentiality of 
quality and patient safety work. 

IV. Information, data results, reports and minutes generated by all quality management activities 
will be handled in a manner ensuring strict confidentiality 

V. Confidential information may include but is not limited to: Medical Staff committee minutes, 
organizational quality improvement committee minutes, electronic data gathering and 
reporting, and incident/occurrence reporting 

VI. Quality improvement activities will occur in ways that preserve confidentiality of information 
consistent with policy and established law 

VII. The Joint Commission is an independent contractor. Any event reported to The Joint 
Commission is performed under the auspice of the Quality Committee. 

References 

Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI], 2015; Langley, et al., 2009 

LRG Healthcare. (August, 2019). Quality Management Plan. Unpublished internal document, 
LRGHealthcare. 

Quality Assurance & Performance Improvement (QAPI). (n.d.). Retrieved from https://hsag.com/qapi 

Ransom Memorial Health. (March, 2019). Quality Improvement Plan. Unpublished internal document, 
Ransom Memorial Health. 

Summary of Compliance Concerns & Strategies for Compliance and/or Improvement: Healthcare 
Strategies. August 2020 

The Joint Commission. (2023, Jan). PI performance improvement plan. PolicySource hospital and critical 
access hospital. PolicySource: P&Ps for Compliance with Joint Commission Requirements | Joint 
Commission Resources (jcrinc.com) 

Whitney Matson. (N.A). Quality Management System Plan. Unpublished internal document, St. John's 
Health. 

Wyoming Laws. (2015). Title 35, Public Health and Safety. Wyoming Statute W.S. §35-2-910 (1977). 
Quality management functions for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer 
review. Retrieved from Thomson Reuters WestlawNext. 

Approval: 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Committee – May 9th, 2023 

Medical Executive Committee - May 23rd, 2023 

Quality Committee of the Board – June 21st, 2023 

Board of Trustees – 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 14 of 15

42/149



DRAFT

Attachments 

Appendix 1 - Reporting Calendar 

Appendix 2 - Committee Reporting Structure 

Appendix 3 - Proposed Performance Improvement Project Decision Checklist 

Appendix 4 - PIPS Documentation Tool 

Appendix 5 - PIPS Reporting Presentation Template 

Appendix 6 - Communication Plan 

Appendix 7 - IHI Model for Improvement.pdf 

Appendix 8 - FY 2023 PIPS Priorities 

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Board of Trustees Ann Clevenger: CNO 06/2022 

Quality Committee of Board Kari Quickenden: Chief Clinical 
Officer 

06/2022 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 15 of 15

43/149



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 13563708 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

General - 
Housewide 

Reg. 
Standards 

CMS A-0263,
CMS A-0273,
CMS A-0283,
CMS A-0286,
CMS A-0297,
CMS A-0308,
CMS A-0309,
CMS A-0411,
CMS A-0508,
TJC 
LD.01.03.01,
TJC 
LD.01.05.01,
TJC 
LD.02.01.01,
TJC 
LD.02.02.01,
TJC 
LD.02.04.01,
TJC 
LD.03.01.01,
TJC 
LD.03.02.01,
TJC 
LD.03.03.01,
TJC 
LD.03.04.01,
TJC 
LD.03.05.01,
TJC 
LD.03.06.01,
TJC 
LD.03.07.01,
TJC 
LD.03.09.01,
TJC 
LD.03.10.01,
TJC 
PI.01.01.01,
TJC 
PI.02.01.01,
TJC 
PI.03.01.01,
TJC 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan 

Mission 

Compassionate care for every life we touch 

Vision 

To be our community's trusted healthcare leader 

Values 

Be Kind, Be Accountable, Be Respectful, Embrace Excellence, Work 
Collaboratively 

Introduction 

Definitions 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) is committed to providing compassionate, high-quality 
care with a strong culture of safety for the best patient outcomes. Our objective is to support a culture of 
safety for our patients and workersstaff. This culture allows us to consistently identify opportunities to 
improve performance and increase safety while maintaining a commitment to responsible stewardship 
of resources as aligned with MHSC's mission, vision, values, and strategic objectives. 

Performance improvement – The systematic process of detecting and analyzing performance problems, 
designing and developing interventions to address the problems, implementing the interventions, 
evaluating the results, and sustaining improvement. 

Patient safety - The prevention of errors and adverse effects to patients that are associated with health 
care. Patient Safety Plan 

Quality - A person-centered commitment to excellence, consistently using best practice to achieve the 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 16

44/149



DRAFT

Purpose 

Scope 

Objectives 

I. To guide development and implementation of data collection processes that support 
performance improvement. Data are fundamental components of all performance 
improvement processes. Data can be obtained from internal sources (for example, 
documentation, records, staff, patients, observations, and risk assessments) or from external 
sources (for example, regulatory organizations, insurers, and the community). The purpose of 
data collection is to ensure that data necessary to identify, address, and monitor areas for 
improvement are available. 

best outcomes for our patients and community. 

MHSC uses the following terminology interchangeably: quality improvement and performance 
improvement. 

The Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan provides guidelines for collecting, 
analyzing, and using data to identify, address, and monitor performance to continually improve the 
quality of care provided by the hospital. The PIPS Plan encompasses a multidisciplinary and integrated 
approach and is designed to include Leadership, Medical Staff, employees, and the Board of Trustees to 
collaboratively identify, plan provides guidelines for collecting, analyzingimplement and sustain 
improvement. The previously identified parties assess processes, and using data to identifyinitiate peer 
review activities, address, and monitor performance to continuallyand take appropriate actions that will 
improve the quality of care provided by the hospitalprocesses and/or systems, in an effort to improve 
outcomes within the organization. The PIPS Plan encompasses a multidisciplinary and integrated 
approach, and is designed toapproved annually by the Board of Trustees. Functions of the PIPS Plan 
include Leadership, Medical Staff, employees, and the Board of Trustees to collaboratively identify, plan, 
implement and sustain improvement. The previously identified parties assess processes, initiate peer 
review activities, and take appropriate actionsexpressing the foundational concepts that will improve the 
processes and/or systems, in an effort to improve outcomes within the organization. The PIPS plan is 
approved annually by the Board of Trustees. Functions of the PIPS plan include expressing the 
foundational concepts that form the basis for MHSC's performance improvement and patient safety 
efforts. In addition, the PIPS Plan outlines the structure and processes that MHSC has developed as a 
framework for participation in performance improvement across the organization. 

The PIPS Plan is organization wide and applies to all departments, care, treatment, and services settings 
(including those services furnished under contract or arrangement). This includes Hospital inpatient and 
outpatient services, as well as Sweetwater Memorial Clinics. (Appendix 1 – FY 2023 PIPS Committee 
Reporting Calendar) 

The objective of the PIPS planPlan is to allow for a systematic, coordinated, and continuous approach 
for improving performance. (Appendix 4 – PIPS Documentation Tool) 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 16

45/149



DRAFT

II. To guide development and implementation of data analysis processes that support 
performance improvement. Collected data must be analyzed to be useful. The purpose of data 
analysis is to determine the status of the hospital’s quality of care and to inform any plans for 
improvement. 

III. To guide development and implementation of performance improvement processes that 
increase safety and quality. All performance improvement activities must be based on relevant 
data collected and analyzed according to hospital policies and procedures. Performance 
improvement is a continual process. The purpose of performancePerformance improvement 
isaims to ensure that the safest, highest-quality care is provided to all patients at all times. 

Organization and Accountability 

I. The responsibilities of the Board of Trustees, as they relate to the PIPS Plan, include: 

A. Oversee that quality and safety are at the core of the organization's mission 

B. Oversee that quality and safety values are embedded in guiding the organization's 
strategic plan 

C. Oversee that adequate resources (staff, time, information systems, and training) are 
allocated to data collection and performance improvement 

D. Oversee the Hospital's ongoing monitoring, maintenance, and improvement efforts 
for safe, high - quality, and efficient medical care that is in accordance with all 
applicable laws and accrediting bodies 

E. Monitor appropriate data collection processes, including methods, frequency, and 
details 

1. By approving the PIPS Plan and accepting dashboard reports and other 
reports addressing specific metrics, the Board approves data definitions 
and frequency and detail of data collection. The Board authorizes 
applicable quality oversight committees to adjust data definitions and data 
frequency as deemed necessary so long as revisions ensure performance 
improvement processes are in no way hindered and applicable definitions 
and frequency are consistent with national, state, or local reporting 
requirements. Based on its oversight responsibilities and at its discretion, 
the Board, may at any time require changes in either frequency or detail of 
data collection. 

a. Frequency of data collection and reporting is determined on a 
case-by -case basis with consideration to improvement 
priorities, sample size necessary for adequate review, and 

The PIPS Plan shall involve the coordinated efforts of the Board of Trustees, Senior Leadership Team, 
Medical Staff, Department Directors, Supervisors, Clinical Coordinators, and front line staff of the various 
MHSC departments and committees. Every employee is responsible for participating in performance 
improvement activities, as appropriate to their job duties. Engagement in quality improvement activities 
is an expectation at MHSC. Activities are prioritized by the PIPS Committee and Medical Staff, with input 
from the Quality Committee of the Board. 

Board of Trustees 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 16

46/149



DRAFT

resource consideration 

F. Assess the effectiveness of the PIPS Plan 

G. Review and approve the PIPS Plan annually 

H. Participate in education regarding the methods of quality management and 
performance improvement 

I. Receive reports of indicators and performance of processes as outlined in this plan 

J. Receive regular reports regarding all departments with direct and indirect patient 
care services and ensure these are monitored, problems are identified and 
prioritized, and appropriate action is implemented 

I. The Senior Leadership Team is comprised of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Medical 
Officer (CMO), Chief Nursing Officer (CNO), Chief Clinical Officer (CCO), and Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO). 

II. Oversight of a PIPS planPlan capable of continuous improvement is a task accomplished in an 
environment fostered by Senior Leadership support. The Senior Leadership Team's 
commitment includes taking accountability for the PIPS Plan's effectiveness ofand ensuring 
the PIPS Plan and ensuring the integration of the PIPS Plan requirements are integrated into 
organizational processes. In addition, the commitment includes recognizing the importance of 
meeting patient needs and the various requirements of statutes and regulations that surround 
and permeate the organization. 

III. The responsibilities of the Senior Leadership Team as they relate to the PIPS Plan include: 

A. Support the implementation, execution, and oversight of this quality framework 

B. Set the scope, priorities, guidelines, and parameters for the PIPS Plan 

C. Align the PIPS Plan with strategic priorities 

D. Set expectations for using data and information 

E. Set priorities for and identify the frequency of data collection and performance 
improvement that include but are not limited to the following: 

1. High-volume processes 

2. High-risk processes 

3. Problem-prone processes 

F. Set priorities for performance improvement based on the following considerations: 

1. Incidence 

2. Prevalence 

3. Severity 

G. Prioritize and ensure that adequate resources (staff, time, information systems, and 
training) are allocated to data collection and performance improvement 

H. UpdatesUpdate this plan to reflect any changes, including but not limited to, changes 

Senior Leadership Team 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 16

47/149



DRAFT

in the following: 
Strategic priorities 
Internal or external environment (such as patient population, community health 
metrics, and so on) 

1. Strategic priorities 

2. Internal or external environment (such as patient population, community 
health metrics, and so on) 

I. Ensure the PIPS Plan is cohesive and feasible 

J. May periodicallyPeriodically approve flexibility and variation in department and 
committee - scheduled reports, in extenuating circumstances as necessary 

K. Ensure accreditation standards adherence 

L. Motivate and support staff to achieve PIPS objectives 

M. Evaluate the effectiveness of the hospital’s use of data and information 

N. Monitor the effectiveness of the PIPS Plan and the achievement of results 

O. Ensure appropriate follow -up of identified corrective actions not resulting in 
expected or sustained improvement 

P. Communicate the PIPS Plan to workersstaff and the community 

I. The responsibilities of the Quality Department as they relate to the PIPS Plan include: 

A. Serve as a resource for performance improvement, patient safety, patient 
experience, and regulatory information 

B. Educate MHSC staff about the performance improvement process, patient safety, 
and patient experience 

C. Support staff, including Medical Staff, Leadership, and project leaders, in the 
development and implementation of performance improvement activities, including 
team building and data analysis 

D. Assist with and assure data gathering efforts are valid, reliable, and comprehensive 

E. Attend designated Medical Staff committee meetings and facilitate performance 
improvement processes 

F. Provide accurate and reliable data for Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation 
(OPPE) profiles for assessment of Medical Staff members 

G. Promote consistency in performance improvement activities 

I. The Medical Staff provides expertise onin meeting appropriate clinical goals, objectives, and 
initiatives for patient care. The responsibilities of the Medical Staff as they relate to the PIPS 
planPlan include: 

A. Provide clinical input for targets related to clinical outcomes 

Quality Department 

Medical Staff 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 16

48/149



DRAFT

B. Carry out tasks to meet the objectives of the PIPS planPlan 

C. Reviews reports to ensure measures are reaching agreed -upon targets in Medical 
Staff meetings 

D. Act upon identified areas for improvement 

E. Provide effective mechanisms to measure, assess, and improve the quality and 
appropriateness of patient care, and the clinical performance of all individuals with 
delineated clinical privileges, accomplished through Ongoing Professional Practice 
Evaluations (OPPE), Focused Professional Practice Evaluations (FPPE), and Peer 
Review Process (refer to Professional Practice Review Process – Medical Staff Peer 
Reviewrefer to Professional Practice Review Process – Medical Staff Peer Review) 

I. The Leadership Team is comprised of department directors, supervisors, and clinical 
coordinators. The responsibilities of the Leadership Team, as they relate to the PIPS Plan, 
include: 

A. Utilize performance improvement processes to support MHSC's mission, vision, and 
values 

B. Participate in the collection and analysis of relevant departmental data 

C. Foster a climate of continuous improvement through measurement, data analysis, 
identification, and implementation of changes needed to improve and ensure 
sustainment 

D. Monitor processes known to jeopardize the safety or clinical outcomes of patients 

E. Implement and maintain processes to ensure compliance with applicable 
requirement(s) or standard(s) 

F. Ensure services provided are consistent with MHSC's values and goal of consistently 
providing person-centered care 

G. Document improvement initiatives and progress (Appendix 4 - PIPS Documentation 
Tool) 

H. Present department performance improvement project updates to PIPS Committee 
as requested and/or scheduled (Appendix 5 - PIPS Reporting Presentation Template) 

I. The responsibilities of the Project Teams, Department Employees, and Volunteers as they 
relate to the PIPS Plan include 

A. Participate in data collection and analysis activities as well as performance 
improvement activities 

B. Identify and utilize approaches for improving processes and outcomes to 
continuously improve the quality and safety of patient care 

C. Performance improvement project teams may be formed according to employee 
identification of improvements and prioritization 

D. Document improvement initiatives and progress (Appendix 4 - PIPS Documentation 

Leadership Team 

Project Teams, Department EmployeesStaff, and Volunteers 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 6 of 16

49/149



DRAFT

Tool) 

E. Report improvement initiatives to PIPS Committee as requested or scheduled 
(Appendix 5 - PIPS Reporting Presentation Template) 

I. The PIPS Committee oversees the establishment, implementation, and monitoring of the PIPS 
Plan. The core PIPS Committee shall be comprised of Senior Leadership, Director of 
ClinicMedical Office Building Clinics, Director of Acute Care Services, Director of Emergency 
Services, Director of Infection Prevention, Director of Surgical Services, Director of Medical 
Imaging, Director of Women's Health, Director of Pharmacy, Director of Cardiopulmonary, 
Director of Environmental Services, Director of Lab, Director of Nutrition Services, Director of 
Rehab Services, Director of Care Management, Director of Education, Director of Dialysis, 
Director of Cancer CenterMedical Oncology, Director of Radiation Oncology, Quality 
Department, Medical Staff Representative, Security, Emergency Management Coordinator, 
Family Medicine/Emergency Management,Occupational Medicine Clinic Representative and 
Patient Safety Representative. Other representatives may attend based on identified priorities. 

A. Provide an organization -wide program to systematically measure, assess, and 
improve performance to achieve optimal patient outcomes in a collaborative, 
multidisciplinary, cross-departmental approach 

B. Support activities to promote patient safety and encourage a reduction in 
preventable harm, in collaboration with the Patient Safety Committee 

C. Provide a mechanism to foster collaborative efforts for performance improvement, 
feedback, and learning throughout the organization while assigning responsibilities 
and authority for these processes 

D. Implement all Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and other 
regulatory bodies' quality management and performance improvement standards 
and maintain accreditation and required certifications 

E. Oversee compliance with accreditation standards and support resolution of 
noncompliance through action plans in coordination with the Continual Survey 
Readiness Committee 

F. Coordinate schedule for department and committee reports 

G. Prioritize improvement projects to address processes based on the following: 

1. Focus on high-risk, high -volume, or problem -prone areas 

2. Consider the incidence, prevalence, and severity of problemthe problems 
in those areas 

3. Affect on health outcomes, patient safety, and quality of care 

4. Additional factors include:such as resource allocation and accreditation/
regulatory requirements 

5. UtilizesUtilize a prioritization scoring tool. This will to assist in determining 
the distinct number of improvement projects annually (Appendix 3 - 
Proposed Performance Improvement Project Decision Checklist) 

PIPS Committee Functions 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 7 of 16

50/149



DRAFT

H. Ensure performance improvement projects incorporate the needs and expectations 
of patients and families 

I. Monitor the status of identified and prioritized performance improvement projects 
and action plans by ensuring additional data collection and analysis is performed to 
assure improvement or problem resolution on a sustained basis 

J. Identify corrective actions not resulting in expected or sustained improvement 

K. Ensure proper continuation of the cycle of creating, implementing, monitoring, and 
evaluating improvement efforts 

L. Identify annual data elements collected on an ongoing basis to prioritize focus areas 
for performance improvement 

M. Review and approve the PIPS Plan each year prior to submitting to the Quality 
Committee of the Board 

N. Oversee annual evaluation of performance improvement project priorities and goals 

O. Oversee annual evaluation of PIPS Plan objectives, scope, and effectiveness, and 
evaluate progress towards strategic plan goals related to quality, safety, and patient 
experience 

P. Communicate information concerning quality, patient safety, and patient experience 
to departments when opportunities to improve exist 

Q. ReportsReport, in writing, to leadership on issues and interventions related to 
adequacy of staffing, including nurse staffing. This occurs at least once a year. 

R. Report appropriate information regarding quality, patient safety, patient experience, 
and accreditation to Senior Leadership, Medical Executive Committee (MEC), Quality 
Committee of the Board, and the Board of Trustees to provide leaders with the 
information they need in fulfilling their responsibilities concerning the quality and 
safety of patient care 

1. Specifically, the committee provides data on Multidrug-resistant 
organismorganisms (MDROMDROs), Central Lineline-associated Blood 
Stream Infectionblood stream infection (CLABSI), andCatheter associated 
urinary tract infection (CAUTI), Clostridioides difficile (CDI), Surgical Site 
Infectionsite infection (SSI) to key stakeholders, including but not limited 
to the following: 

a. Leaders 

b. Licensed independent practitioners 

c. Nursing staff 

d. Other clinicians 

S. Provide reports to the Quality Committee of the Board regarding results of 
performance improvement activities 

I. Risk Management is undertaken by the Quality Department, in collaboration with multiple other 
departments, to identify, evaluate and reduce risk or loss to patients, employees, visitors, and 

Risk/Compliance 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 8 of 16

51/149



DRAFT

the hospital. The PIPS Committee may assist with quality improvement opportunities 
identified for risk reduction and performance improvement. 

I. MHSC is committed to encouraging, promoting, and supporting a culture of safety throughout 
the organization. The purpose of the organizational Patient Safety Program is to improve 
patient safety and reduce risk to patients through an environment that encourages: 

A. Recognition and acknowledgment of risks to patients ofwith regard to medical/
health care errors 

B. Initiation of actions to reduce these risks 

C. Internal reporting of what has been found and the actions taken 

D. Focus on processes and systems 

E. Minimization of individual blame or retribution for involvement in a medical/health 
care error 

F. Organizational learning about medical/health care error 

G. Support for the sharing of knowledge to effect behavioral changes in itself and other 
health carehealthcare organizations 

H. Appropriate communication and transparency to our patients and families 

II. Please refer to the Patient Safety Plan for further information. Patient Safety Plan 

Methodology 

Performance improvement project teams will collect, analyze, document, and report 
improvements using Lean principles and methodologies (Appendix 4 – PIPS Documentation 
Tool) 

I. Performance improvement project teams will use data to determine how action plans are 
developed and will define the frequency of data collection 

Data 

Safety 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County utilizes processes outlined by the Institute for Healthcare 
Improvement (IHI) Model for Improvement, developed by Associates in Process Improvement. This 
model for improvement includes forming a team, setting aims, and establishing measures, along with
selecting, testing, implementing, and spreading changes, testing changes, implementing changes, and 
spreading changes. The Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA) Model is used to guide tests of change within and 
throughout the organization. Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, and Time-bound (S.M.A.R.T) 
goals are encouraged to be utilized when appropriate in setting aims and smart objectives. (See 
Appendix 4-PIPS Documentation Tool and Appendix 7 – IHI's Model for Improvement) Performance 
improvement teams may use other evidence-based methodologies and tools as appropriate based on 
the complexity, scope, and scale of the improvement project. 

MHSC continually seeks to identify changes that will lead to improved quality and patient safety. 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 9 of 16

52/149



DRAFT

I. By approving the PIPS Plan and accepting dashboard reports and other reports addressing 
specific metrics, the Board approves data definitiondefinitions, along with frequency and detail 
of data collection. The Board authorizes applicable quality oversight committees to adjust 
data definitions and frequency of data frequencycollection as deemed necessary, so long as 
revisions ensure performance improvement processes are in no way hindered and applicable 
definitions and frequency are consistent with national, state, or local reporting requirements. 
Based on its oversight responsibilities and at its discretion, the Board, may, at any time require 
changes in either frequency or detail of data collection. 

A. Frequency of data collection and reporting is determined on a case-by case basis 
with consideration to improvement priorities, sample size necessary for adequate 
review, and resources consideration 

II. Data Collection 

A. The PIPS Committee has identified acceptable data sources for use in performance 
monitoring and improvement activity. Data sources and mechanisms of identifying 
opportunities for improvement include, but are not limited to: 

1. Risk Assessments 

2. Reports and/or alerts from governmental agencies (for example, Centers 
for Disease Control and Prevention, Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration, Food and Drug Administration) 

3. Accreditation reports 

4. Regulatory rounds and tracers 

5. Culture of Safety survey 

6. Occurrence reports and good catchesGood Catches identifying patient 
safety concerns and trends 

7. Staff reporting safety or process concerns to their leaders 

8. RCA (Root Cause Analysis) 

9. FMEA (Failure Mode Effects Analysis) 

10. Patient complaints/grievances 

11. Patient perception of safety and quality 

12. Peer review 

13. Ongoing medical record review 

14. Audit of clinical contracts 

15. Internal audits identifying improvement opportunities 

16. Sentinel event reports and Joint Commission Sentinel Event alerts 

Annually and coinciding with the fiscal year, each department/discipline shall develop indicators for 
performance improvement based on their identified improvement project. Whenever possible, data 
collection is a shared activity involving staff. The collected data may be organized and analyzed with the 
assistance of the Quality Department, if necessary. 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 10 of 16

53/149



DRAFT

17. Hospital Quality Improvement Contractor (HQIC) 

B. The PIPS Committee collaborates with department managers to perform the 
following activities: 

1. Collect data required by CMS Conditions of Participation and The Joint 
Commission including measures from: 

a. Inpatient Quality Reporting 

b. Outpatient Quality Reporting 

c. Value Based Purchasing 

d. Hospital Readmission Reduction Program 

e. Hospital Acquired Condition Reduction Program 

f. Quality Payment Program – Merit Based Incentive Payment 

g. Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and 
Systems (HCAHPS) 

h. The Joint Commission ORYX Core Measures 

2. Collect data on the following: 

a. Improvement priorities, as identified by leadership 

Transfers to other facilities 

b. Selected outcome indicators (mortality, readmissions, etc.) 

c. Procedures, including operative procedures, that place patient at 
risk of disability or death 

d. AllClinically significant discrepancies between preoperative 
andunexpected postoperative diagnoses, as determined by the 
medical staff 

e. Blood and blood components use 

f. Use of restraints 

g. Use of seclusion 

h. Patient safety issues (ex: falls, self harm) 

i. Resuscitative services, including the following elements: 

i. Number and location of cardiac arrests 

ii. Outcomes of resuscitation, such as return of 
spontaneous circulation (ROSC) and/or survival to 
discharge 

iii. Transfer to higher level of care 

j. Pain assessment and pain management 

k. Rapid response to change or deterioration in a patient condition 

l. Care or services to high-risk populations (patient falls) 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 11 of 16

54/149



DRAFT

m. National Patient Safety Goals 

n. CMS preventable conditions (Hospital-Acquired Conditions) 

o. Healthcare-associated infections (SSI, CLABSI, CAUTI, MRSA, 
MDRO, C.diff) 

p. AHRQ Patient Safety Indicators (PSI) 

q. Reported and confirmed transfusion reactions 

r. Changing internal or external (e.g. Joint Commission Sentinel 
Event Alerts) conditions 

s. MRI incidents/injuries 

t. Significant adverse drug reactions 

u. Significant medication errors 

v. Adverse events or patterns of adverse events during moderate 
or deep sedation and anesthesia 

w. Complications of care 

3. Collect data on topics in the following areas: 

a. Environment of care 

b. Infection prevention and control 

c. Medication management system 

d. Resuscitation performance, including but not limited to the 
following elements: : 

i. Frequency of early warning signs being present prior 
to cardiac arrest 

ii. Timeliness of staff response to cardiac arrest 

iii. Quality of cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) 

iv. Post–cardiac arrest care processes 

v. Outcomes following cardiac arrest 

e. Organ procurement program (conversion rates) 

f. Adequacy of staffing, including nurse staffing, in relation to 
undesirable patterns, trends, or variations in performance 

g. Incidents related to overexposure to radiation during diagnostic 
computed tomography examinations and, if applicable, provision 
of fluoroscopic services 

4. Include the following information when recording data: 

a. Data source 

b. Collection frequency 

c. Reporting frequency 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 12 of 16

55/149



DRAFT

d. Report audience 

e. Responsible department(s) 

f. Indicators for intervention 

III. Data Reliability and Validity 

A. Collected data need to be accurate, complete, and reliable. The PIPS Committee has 
established the following expectations for any data used to monitor or improve 
hospital performance: 

1. Data samples will undergo auditing 

2. Data sources will be regularly checked using established procedures 

3. Re-abstraction will occur on a data sample 

IV. Data Analysis 

A. The PIPS Committee does the following: 

1. Engages the assistance of relevant departmental management and/or 
staff to collect and analyze data 

2. Develops goals and benchmarks in conjunction with stakeholders with 
attention to past performance, national performance data, external 
benchmarks, or comparative databases 

3. Compares internal data over time to identify levels of performance, pattern 
or trends in performance, and variations in performance 

4. Utilizes statistical tools and techniques to measure, analyze, and display 
data (e.g., run charts, flow charts and control charts). Preferred PIPS data 
displays include dashboards, run charts, and control charts, as applicable 

5. Analyzes data using methods that are appropriate to the type of data and 
the desired metrics, which include but are not limited to: 

a. Benchmark: a comparison and measurement of a health care 
organization's metrics against other national health care 
organizations. MHSC utilizes the National Average when 
available. 

b. Target Goal (SMART Goal): targeted goals define interim steps 
towards the stretch goal. Target goals may change frequently as 
progress is made toward stretch goal. Target goals help form a 
concrete plan of action in order to make the stretch goal a 
reality. 

c. Stretch Goal: inspires us to think big and reminds us to focus on 
the larger picture. This goal should exceed the benchmark. 
MHSC utilizes the National Top 10% when available. 

6. Analyzes aggregate data to draw conclusions aboutidentify opportunities 
for improvement and actions to improve the quality of processes 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 13 of 16

56/149



DRAFT

Communication 

I. To communicate changes made based on data analysis, and to sustain improvements, 
performance improvement is communicated through the following resources (Appendix 6 - 
Communication Plan): 

A. Quality Committee of the Board 

B. PIPS Committee 

C. Leadership meetings 

D. Medical Staff meetings 

E. Staff meetings 

F. Department white boards, electronic communication, and communication books 
may be utilized to display results of monitoring and internal performance 
improvement activities 

Confidentiality 

I. WY Stat 35-2-910. Quality management function for health care facilities; confidentiality; 
immunity; whistle blowing; peer review. Subsection A. 

II. All quality and patient safety data, materials, and information are private and confidential, shall 
be considered the property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County, and as such is 
protected by state and federal health care quality statutes. 

III. Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in 
keeping with hospital policy and state and federal regulations governing the confidentiality of 
quality and patient safety work. 

IV. Information, data results, reports and minutes generated by all quality management activities 
will be handled in a manner ensuring strict confidentiality 

V. Confidential information may include but is not limited to: Medical Staff committee minutes, 
organizational quality improvement committee minutes, electronic data gathering and 
reporting, and incident/occurrence reporting 

VI. Quality improvement activities will occur in ways that preserve confidentiality of information 
consistent with policy and established law 

VII. The Joint Commission is an independent contractor. Any event reported to The Joint 
Commission is performed under the auspice of the Quality Committee. 

References 

Institute for Healthcare Improvement [IHI], 2015; Langley, et al., 2009 

LRG Healthcare. (August, 2019). Quality Management Plan. Unpublished internal document, 
LRGHealthcare. 

Quality Assurance & Performance Improvement (QAPI). (n.d.). Retrieved from https://hsag.com/qapi 

Ransom Memorial Health. (March, 2019). Quality Improvement Plan. Unpublished internal document, 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 14 of 16

57/149



DRAFT
Attachments 

Appendix 1 - Reporting Calendar 

Appendix 2 - Committee Reporting Structure 

Appendix 3 - Proposed Performance Improvement Project Decision Checklist 

Appendix 4 - PIPS Documentation Tool 

Appendix 5 - PIPS Reporting Presentation Template 

Appendix 6 - Communication Plan 

Appendix 7 - IHI Model for Improvement.pdf 

Appendix 8 - FY 2023 PIPS Priorities 

Ransom Memorial Health. 

Summary of Compliance Concerns & Strategies for Compliance and/or Improvement: Healthcare 
Strategies. August 2020 

The Joint Commission. (20222023, Jan). PI performance improvement plan. PolicySource hospital and 
critical access hospital. PolicySource: P&Ps for Compliance with Joint Commission Requirements | Joint 
Commission Resources (jcrinc.com) 

Whitney Matson. (N.A). Quality Management System Plan. Unpublished internal document, St. John's 
Health. 

Wyoming Laws. (2015). Title 35, Public Health and Safety. Wyoming Statute W.S. §35-2-910 (1977). 
Quality management functions for health care facilities; confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer 
review. Retrieved from Thomson Reuters WestlawNext. 

Approval: 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Committee – April 12May 9th, 2022 2023 

Quality Committee of the Board – April 20th, 2022 

Medical Executive Committee –- May 24th23rd, 20222023 

Quality Committee of the Board of Trustees – June 121st, 2022 2023 

Board of Trustees – 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 15 of 16

58/149



DRAFT

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan. Retrieved 06/2023. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13563708/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 16 of 16

59/149



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: July 5, 2023 
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: First Reading of the Infection Prevention Plan 
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ______ Revision 
 ___X___ New (Updated yearly) 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: The Infection Prevention Plan is created with 
input from the multidisciplinary Infection Control Committee. The Infection 
Prevention Plan was approved by the Infection Control Committee and PIPS. The 
presentation at the Board Meeting is for First Reading. 

 

 Board Committee Action: No Board Committee Action was taken. 
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ____X___ For Review Only (First Reading) 
 _______ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 _N/A______ In House Comments: 
 _______ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: The recommendation for the July meeting is 
for the Infection Prevention Plan to pass through First Reading. I do recommend 
ultimate approval of the Infection Prevention Plan to guide infection control 
initiatives post-approval by the Infection Control Committee and the PIPS 
Committee. 
Ann Marie Clevenger DNP, RN, CNO 

60/149



INFECTION PREVENTION PLAN FOR CY 2023 

(Based on organization’s strategic plan, risk assessment and external requirements) 

1 

Hand Hygiene 

Risk score 20% 

NPSG.07.01.01 EPI 
IC.01.04.01 

GOAL:  
Hand Hygiene 
compliance rates to 
increase by 5 % for 
each department, with 
a house wide 
compliance rate 
increase of 8% by 
December 31, 2023 
(2022 average 80%) 

Number of correct 
observances divided 
by number of total 
observances

• Conduct unit audits at
least once weekly,
feedback data to unit
leadership, review with
staff

• Provide unit education on
hand hygiene, fingernails,
approved lotions

• Report HH
performance
monthly to ICC
and other
committees as
appropriate

• Front Line Staff
• Leadership team
• Clinical coordinators,

supervisors
• Environment

Services director
• Director of Infection

Prevention and CNO
• Infection Prevention
• ICC

Transmission-
based 
Precautions 

Risk Score 17% 

NPSG.07.01.01 
TJC: IC.02.01.01 
IC.02.02.01 

GOAL: 
Zero Hospital Acquired 
Infection related to 
cross contamination 

Zero infections related 
to cross contamination 
emphasis on MRSA, 
CDI.    

• Educate departments on
their roles in the fight
against HAI’s

• Work with pharmacy team
and antibiotic stewardship

• Work with physician team
to identify potential HAI
occurrences

• Round on Isolation
• Round on PPE

use
• Validation of

education on
NetLearning
transcripts

• Front Line staff
• Clinical leadership
• Clinical coordinators,

supervisors
• Infection Prevention
• Pharmacy
• Physicians

Contaminated 
Instruments/ 
Equipment 
To Include: 

High level 
disinfection 
and/or 
sterilization 

Risk Score 15% 

IC 01.04.01 EP 1 

GOAL: 
Zero tolerance for 
improper reprocessing 
of invasive 
instruments/equipment 
(i.e. critical or semi-
critical devices 
requiring sterilization 
and/or high-level 
disinfection) 

Standardized 
protocols for 
sterilization and high-
level disinfection 
followed throughout 
facility.  
Maintain use of 
procedural & unit-
based pre-soaking of 
instruments every 
time. 
Rounding/monitoring/s
urveillance. 1 area 
each month 100% 
compliance with goal. 

• Competency assessment
of staff who perform
reprocessing upon hire and
annually

• Documentation in logs (per
policy) on cycle
parameters, biological
testing, solution
concentration, and
temperature.

• Audit unit pre-
soaking/spraying of items
with a solution per IFU prior
to arrival in SP.

• Departmental
monthly monitoring
of quality control

• Process monitored
as part of mock
surveys/EOC
rounds.

• Joint SP/Infection
Prevention site
visits to locations
that reprocess

• Departmental
managers

• SP
• IP
• ICC
• Front Line staff

61/149



INFECTION PREVENTION PLAN FOR CY 2023 

(Based on organization’s strategic plan, risk assessment and external requirements) 

2 

Add the ratings for each event in probability, risk, and preparedness.  The total values, in descending order, will represent the events most in need of organization focus and 
resources for emergency planning.  Determine a value below which no action is necessary.  For our hospital, that value is 10. 

Approved Infection Prevention Committee: 03/30/2023 
Approved MEC: 04/18/2023

Contaminated 
Equipment 

Low Level 
Disinfection 

Risk Score 20% 

GOAL: Provide safe 
and sanitary equipment 
and environment  

Environment of Care 
results >80% 
compliance with 
monitoring and 
Surveillance. 
1 department each 
month. 

• Written clarification of
cleaning protocols

• Education of staff
• Standardization of cleaning

products
• Education of proper contact

times for disinfectants

• Environment of
Care results

• Rounding reports

• EVS
• Departmental

managers
• Biomedical

Engineering
• IP
• Unit/department staff
• ICC

Employee 
Participation 

Fit test 
Annually 

Risk Score 19% 

Goal:  
Have 100% of 
employees participate 
in annual fit test. 

Employee health to 
report at IP monthly 
totals. 

Each employee is 
scheduled annually for 
fit test in birth month. 
100 % of employees 
within their month. 

• Each employee is
responsible for scheduling
fit test with employee
health during their birthday
month.

• This can be
included in the
yearly evaluations
done by both
director and
employee

• For physicians it
can be used as
part of their OPPE
evaluation

• Employee
• Employee Health

Annual 
Influenza 
Vaccine 2022-
2023 vaccine 
year   

Risk Score 9% 

IC 02.04.01 EP4 

Goal: 95% of 
Employees vaccinated 

Total number of 
employees vaccinated 
during flu season. 

• Provide education to the
importance/value of
vaccines related to patient
safety

• Provide flu vaccination
clinics

• Continue with mandatory
policy for vaccination

• 

• Monitor monthly by 
employee health 
nurse number of 
employees 

• Employee
• Employee Health
• IP
• Directors
• Senior Leadership

62/149



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: July 5, 2023  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: Radiation Oncology Privilege Form 
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 __X___ Revision 
 ______ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: This has been reviewed and approved by 
Dr. Binks, Dr. Rahul Pawar (Medicine Dept. Chair), Credentials Committee, and the 
Medical Executive Committee (MEC) 
 
Board Committee Action: The Medical Staff Credentials Committee 
approved the form. 
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     _______ For Review Only 
 __X____ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 _______ In House Comments: N/A 
 _______ Board  Comments: N/A 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: Senior Leadership recommends approval. 

63/149



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 1 

 

Rev: 5/2023 

Delineation of Privileges 

RADIATION ONCOLOGY 

 

 Initial appointment    Reappointment    Modification of Privileges 

Applicant 

Check the “Requested” box for each privilege requested. Applicants have the burden of producing information deemed 

adequate by the Hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, current clinical activity, and other 

qualifications and for resolving any doubts related to qualifications for requested privileges. 

To be eligible to request privileges in Radiation Oncology, a practitioner must meet the following minimum threshold criteria: 
 

LICENSURE / 

PROFESSIONAL 

LIABILITY 

INSURANCE 

MD or DO 

Licensed to practice medicine in the State of Wyoming 

Current Wyoming designated DEA Registration and current Wyoming Controlled Substance Registration 

Professional liability insurance in the amounts of at least: Per Claim: $1,000,000.00 Aggregate: 

$3,000,000.00. 

EDUCATION / 

TRAINING 

Successful completion of an Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME) or 

American Osteopathic Association (AOA)-accredited residency in radiation oncology.  

CERTIFICATION Certification by the applicable Radiology specialty board for any clinical privileges for which applicant 

has applied or be eligible for certification by such board.  Once physician is board certified, Maintenance 

of Board Certification is required. 

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(INITIAL) 

Applicants for initial appointment must be able to demonstrate that they have provided primary or 

consultative services in radiation oncology for at least 25 patients over the past 12 months or demonstrate 

successful completion of an ACGME or AOA accredited residency, fellowship, or research.   

Applicants for initial appointment may be requested to provide documentation of the number and types 

of cases during the past 24 months.  Applicants have the burden of producing information deemed 

adequate by the Hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, and other qualifications, and for 

resolving any doubts. 

CLINICAL 

EXPERIENCE 

(REAPPOINTMENT) 

To be eligible to renew core privileges in radiation oncology, the applicant must meet the following 

maintenance of privilege criteria: 

Current demonstrated competence and an adequate volume of experience with acceptable results, 

reflective of the scope of privileges requested.  Evidence of current ability to perform privileges 

requested is required of all applicants for renewal of privileges 

FPPE FPPE criteria will be assigned by the Department Chair during the approval process. 

OTHER 

REQUIREMENTS 
 Note that privileges granted may only be exercised at the site(s) and setting(s) that have the 

appropriate equipment, license, beds, staff, and other support required to provide the services 

defined in this document. Site-specific services may be defined in hospital or department policy. 

 This document is focused on defining qualifications related to competency to exercise clinical 

privileges. The applicant must also adhere to any additional organizational, regulatory, or 

accreditation requirements that the organization is obligated to meet.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

64/149



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 2 

 

Rev: 5/2023 

Requested PATIENT POPULATION AND SETTING Board 

Approval 

 PATIENT POPULATION  

☐ Newborns/Infants (birth to 1 year) ☐ 

☐ Pediatric (age 2 to 21 years) ☐ 

☐ Adult (18 years or older) ☐ 

☐ Geriatric (65 and older) ☐ 

 SETTING  

☐ Outpatient ☐ 

☐ Inpatient  ☐ 

 

 Administration of Sedation and Analgesia 

See Hospital Policy for Sedation and Analgesia by Non-Anesthesiologists 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RADIATION ONCOLOGY CORE PRIVILEGES - This is not intended to be an all-encompassing procedures list.  It 

defines the types of activities/procedures/ privileges that the majority of practitioners in this specialty perform at this 

organization and inherent activities/ procedures/privileges requiring similar skill sets and techniques.  

Requested CHECK ALL PRIVILEGES/PROCEDURES YOU ARE REQUESTING Approved 

☐ Admit and provide comprehensive (multidisciplinary) evaluation and treatment planning for 

patients with cancer, related disorders, and therapeutic radiation for benign diseases, and 

consult on patients of all ages.  [May provide care to patients in the intensive care setting in 

conformance with unit policies.] Assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of patients with 

emergent conditions consistent with medical staff policy regarding emergency and 

consultative call services. The core privileges in this specialty include the procedures on the 

attached procedure list and such other procedures that are extensions of the same techniques 

and skills. 

☐ 

☐ Administration of drugs and medicines related to radiation oncology and cancer supportive care ☐ 

☐ Administration of radiosensitizers, radioprotectors under appropriate circumstances ☐ 

☐ Combined modality therapy (e.g., surgery, radiation therapy, chemotherapy, or 

immunotherapy used concurrently or in a timed sequence) 
☐ 

☐ Computer assisted treatment simulation and planning (external beam therapy and radioactive 

implants) 
☐ 

☐ Fractionated stereotactic radiotherapy ☐ 

☐ Interpretation of studies as they pertain to neoplastic or benign conditions ☐ 

☐ Perform history and physical exam ☐ 

☐ Placement of catheters, IV’s, IV contrast dye, and radiopaque devices that pertain to treatment 

planning 
☐ 

☐ Radiation prescription of doses, treatment volumes, field blocks, molds and other special 

devices for external beam therapy 
☐ 

☐ Radiation therapy of external beam (photon and electron irradiation) ☐ 

☐ Radiation therapy contact therapy (SR, molds, etc.) ☐ 

☐ Stereotactic radiosurgery  ☐ 

☐ X-ray, ultrasound, CT, MRI, and PET, assisted treatment planning ☐ 

65/149



 
 
 

 

 

Name:                          Page 3 

 

Rev: 5/2023 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF APPLICANT 

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, current experience, and demonstrated 

performance I am qualified to perform and that I wish to exercise at Hospital, and I understand that: 

a. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules 

applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation. 

b. Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation 

my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents. 

 

Applicant’s Printed Name:      

 

Applicant’s Signature:       Date:      

 

DEPARTMENT CHAIR REVIEW 

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation and make the following 

recommendations: 

☐ Recommend all privileges as requested. 

 

☐ Recommend privileges with conditions/modifications (describe): 

 

 

☐ Do not recommend the following requested privileges (rationale for recommendation): 

 

 

☐ I assign ________________________________________ to complete the initial FPPE evaluations on this 

Practitioner. 

 

Department Chair’s Printed Name      

 

 

Department Chair’s Signature:       Date:      

 

 

FOR MEDICAL STAFF OFFICE USE ONLY 

Credentials Committee approval Date:    

Medical Executive Committee approval Date:    

Board of Trustees approval Date:    

 

Privileges Effective From: ____________________ To: ____________________ 

 
Date Form Approved by Specialty:   06/07/2023    

Date Form Approved by Department Chair:  06/12/2023      

Date Approved by Credentials Committee:  06/15/2023    

Date Approved by MEC:    06/27/2023     

Date Approved by Board of Trustees:        

 

References 
1. Age Limit of Pediatrics; American Academy of Pediatrics; Age Limit of Pediatrics | Pediatrics | American Academy of Pediatrics (aap.org). 

2017: 1-14. 

2. NIH Style Guide: Age; National Institutes of Health; Age | National Institutes of Health (NIH). September 9, 2022: 1-2. 

66/149



Quality Chair Report June 2023 
 
Meeting started at 8:15 AM 
 
We reviewed some mission moments that shows our commitment to our patients.  On mission 
moment reviewed that one of our employees was on a cruise and ended up talking with a 
doctor on that same cruise.  The doctor had a family member in our area needing treatment.  
The doctor researched MHSC and was impressed with our credentialing and every bit of 
research he could find about us.   
 
Improvements in the PIPS Plan were reviewed, more continuous improvement from Quality. 
 
First two surgeries with the DaVinci Robot were successfully completed and all went well! 
 
Discussed PIPS Plan evaluation and the improvements made. 
 
Discussed nationwide HCAPS trend for whether people would recommend their own hospital.  
 
We continue to discuss a couple of topics that have shown successes as well as areas for 
improvement.  These topics vary monthly.  
 
 

67/149



Finance and Audit Chair report to the Board 
June 2023 
E. F. Tardoni 
 
 
The F&A Committee met by Zoom this month with all voting members present. 
 
Items of note 

 Usual financial reports are included in the Board Packet. 

 No capital projects presented at this meeting 

 An updated Revenue Cycle Improvement Plan was presented.  This update will become a 
routine presentation at future F&A Committee meetings. 

 
The July F&A Committee meeting was canceled as it has been in past years.  The reason for the 
cancelation is to allow staff time to close the fiscal year books and prepare for audit, 

 

68/149



69/149



70/149



71/149



72/149



73/149



74/149



75/149



76/149



77/149



78/149



79/149



80/149



81/149



82/149



83/149



84/149



85/149



86/149



87/149



88/149



89/149



90/149



91/149



92/149



93/149



94/149



95/149



96/149



97/149



98/149



99/149



100/149



101/149



102/149



103/149



104/149



105/149



106/149



107/149



108/149



109/149



110/149



111/149



112/149



113/149



114/149



115/149



116/149



117/149



118/149



119/149



120/149



121/149



122/149



123/149



124/149



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…June Building & Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  June 28, 2023 
 
Oncology Suite Renovation…Work should begin by sometime in September. The State has 
approved the ingress/egress issues involving the entrance. 
 
Building Automation System…The work is about 95% done. Final balancing still needs to be 
completed. 
 
Bulk Oxygen/Landscaping Project…Work continues with the warmer weather. A new riser had 
to be built. More concrete work to be done. Cleanup work needs to be done as well. Project 
should be completed by the end of July. 
 
Lightning Arrest System…Project was originally scheduled to be completed by June 30th. 
However, supply chain issues have caused needed parts and supplies to be delayed. It is hoped 
that work can commence on this project by mid-July and completed by early Fall. 
 
Medical Imaging Core & X-Ray Project…Hospital is waiting on Plan One Architects for plans and 
specs. Once received, more information about this project will be forthcoming. 
 
Laboratory Renovation Project…Will Wheatley, Plan One Architects, is recommending that the 
Hospital utilize the Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) option allowed by State Statute. He 
believes this gives the Hospital the best chance of controlling costs. A motion was approved to 
recommend this option to the Board of Trustees at its July meeting. 
 
Foundation Lab…Hospital staff is studying potential options regarding how best to re-purpose 
this space. Irene said that a Hospital task force should have a recommendation for the Building 
& Grounds Committee to review at its September meeting. Ed suggested that the Hospital 
should consider securing a legal opinion regarding the use of County maintenance funds. 
 
University of Utah MOB area…Plan One Architects is working on the plans and specs to that the 
project can be bid out. 
 
Central Scheduling Space…it is anticipated that this project can be underway by mid-July. This is 
a small project, but still requires approval by the State of Wyoming. 
 
The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, July 24th instead of on the normal date 

125/149



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

June 20, 2023 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on June 20, 2023, 

at 3:00 pm with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

   Mr. Ed Tardoni – Trustee 

   Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

   Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. James Horan, Director of Facilities 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor/Project Manager 

    

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda.  Mr. Tardoni made a motion to approve the 

agenda.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the May 16, 2023, meeting. Mr. Horan 

made a motion to approve the minutes.  Mr. Tardoni seconded; motion passed.  

 

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Johnston presented the metrics for May 2023.  The report included both maintenance and bio-

med work orders.  He said he will run the report for maintenance only and have it uploaded to the 

Board portal. 

 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Oncology Suite renovation 

 

Mr. Horan said the change order for the new entrance was approved by the State.  Mr. Johnston 

said they are waiting on the schedule from the contractor, but they are hoping to start in August or 

September. 
  

Building Automation System 

 

Mr. Johnston said they are 95% complete with this project.  He said there are a few bugs to work 

out and then a complete report for balancing the entire system.  They are working on scheduling a 

time for all parties to be available. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

126/149



 

 

Minutes of the June 20, 2023, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

Bulk Oxygen  

 

Mr. Johnston said there was a delay as the new riser was built the wrong size.  We hired a third 

party to build a new one.  Wylie Construction is back onsite today for back filling and testing.  The 

concrete pad should be poured this week too. 

 

Lightning Arrest System 

 

Mr. Horan reported there has been a delay as Wyolectric is having a hard time getting all the 

supplies needed.  They would like to have everything onsite before starting.  They are hoping to 

be able to start by mid-July. 

 

Medical Imaging Core and X-ray 

 

Mr. Johnston said we have not received an update on plans from PlanOne at this time. 

 

Laboratory Renovation 

 

Mr. Kelsey opened a discussion on which option we should look at for the Laboratory project, 

CMAR or Design Bid Build.  At the last meeting, Mr. Wheatley recommended we do the CMAR 

option.  Ms. Love will confirm with Mr. Wheatley.  Mr. Horan made a motion to present the 

CMAR option to the Board for approval at their July 5th meeting.  Mr. Tardoni seconded; motion 

passed.  

 

Capital Construction Grant for Foundation Lab  

 

Ms. Richardson said we have created a team to meet to look at prioritizing our capital project list 

which will include any options for this space.  She said we would like to have the conversation 

with the commissioners regarding building a project fund with our annual maintenance funds.  We 

would like to be able to carry over these funds for larger projects.  She explained the Foundation 

Lab has closed and was moved back into the main lab at the Hospital.  We have also reopened the 

MOB lab for patient convenience.  Mr. Tardoni asked that we get a legal decision on the state 

statute regarding the maintenance funds.  Mr. Kelsey asked what the timeline was for the taskforce.  

Ms. Richardson said we would be ready to present an update at the September Building & Grounds 

meeting. 

 

University of Utah MOB Space 

 

Mr. Johnston reported that Mr. Wheatley is on schedule to have the drawings to the State by the 

end of the month. We would then start the bid process for this project. 

 

Central Scheduling Space 

 

Mr. Johnston said all of the contractors are on board with a plan to start on July 10.  He is estimating 

a 2-3 week build for the project itself.  They will then have to wait for the State for a final onsite 

inspection. 

 

 

127/149



 

 

Minutes of the June 20, 2023, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

New Business 

 

No new business was reported. 

Other Business 

 

Mr. Kelsey made a request for Jim to give him a tour of the ongoing projects.  Mr. Horan said he 

would love to and asked if it could be scheduled after July 10 and before the next meeting.  

There was discussion to invite the new Board member as well. 

 

Mr. Kelsey said new board committee assignments would be made in July. He was not sure who 

would be on this committee for next year but wanted to thank the staff and Mr. Tardoni for all 

their work on Building & Grounds.  Ms. Richardson also thanked Mr. Tardoni for his work on 

the committee.  

 

The next meeting is tentatively Monday, July 24, 2023, at 2:30 pm.  This will depend on committee 

assignments.  

 

Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting at 3:45 pm. 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

128/149



  

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: July 5, 2023 
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items:  Laboratory renovation build options 
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ______ Revision 
 ___X___ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments:  The Building and Grounds Committee 
discussed build options for the Laboratory renovation project.  The two options 
are Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) and Design Bid Build. 

 

  
 
Board Committee Action:  The Building and Grounds Committee motioned to 
recommend the CMAR option to the Board for approval. 
 
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     _______ For Review Only 
 ___X____ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 _______ In House Comments: 
 _______ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation:  Irene Richardson, CEO and Tami Love, CFO 
recommend approval of a CMAR build option for the laboratory renovation 
project. 

129/149



June 27, 2023 

 

 

MHSC Board of Trustees Report 
 

Atached are the reports that Mat Jackman, Founda�on President, and Tiffany Marshall, Founda�on 
Execu�ve Director presented in the MHSC Trustee and MHSC Founda�on joint board mee�ng on June 
21st. Because that mee�ng was recently held, there isn’t any addi�onal informa�on to be presented this 
month. 

Submited by: Tiffany Marshall  

130/149



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
FISCAL YEAR 2022

A year in review

Casino Night
$24,405

Patient Entertainment Upgrade

Employee contributions

$30,919
Various Programs

Grant Project- SLIB
$8,700,000

Lab Renovation and Expansion

Grant Project- SLIB
$2,100,000

MOB Entrance Renovation

Grant Project
$496,990

Foundation Renovation

Grant Project
$720,220

eHR implementation Support

Red Tie Gala
$202,318

daVinci Robot

Grant Project
$220,000

Physician Recruitment

$12.49
Million

FINANCIAL SUPPORT

131/149



2
3

4
5

6
7

KEY
PROJECTS

Though raising money is
our purpose, the

Foundation has also
implemented and

supported many projects.  

NOT-FOR-PROFIT PRESENTATIONS
Presentations to provide information to the
community to better understand healthcare

financials.
1

PATIENT ENTERTAINMENT UPGRADE
Fully funded the patient entertainment upgrade

to improve patient experiences. 

 DONOR WALL
Installed a Friends of the Foundation Donor wall

to properly recognize all donors.

GUARDIAN ANGEL 
Rolled out and currently presenting the

Guardian Angel program to recognize staff.

WALDNER HOUSE
Hosted 32 patients and 21 guests for a total of 
326 nights stayed at no charge to the patients.

FINANCIAL SUPPORT
The Foundation has committed to $1,583,000 to
funding the Lab renovation and expansion and

the daVinci robot.

EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS & REWARDS
Provided over 100 rewards to staff members
who have contributed to the employee giving

program.

132/149



Looking Ahead in 2023-2024

MHSCFoundation.com

Memorial Hospital Foundation

MAJOR PROJECT
 

As part of the Foundation's
Strategic Pillar- Become the

Charity of Choice, the
Foundation is developing a major

project campaign to get
community buy-in and support of

the hospital's laboratory
renovation and expansion. 

DONATION
PLATFORM

 

As part of the
Foundation's Strategic
Pillar- Increase Org.

Awareness, the Foundation
will evaluate if the current

donation platform is an
efficient process to

capturing donations online.
Also part of the project is

establishing an online
monthly giving program.

INCREASE REVENUE
STREAMS

 

As part of the
Foundation's Strategic

Pillar- Successful
Fundraising Activities,
the Foundation will be
looking to partner with

local businesses to
create and build an

internal giving program.
In addition, the

Foundation looks to build
it's donor database by
growing the $100 club.

INCREASE FINANCIAL
STANDING

 

As part of the
Foundation's Strategic
Pillar- Increase Financial
Standing, the Foundation
recently invested $750K
into 6, 12, and 18 month
CDs. The Foundation is
currently working on an

Investment Policy to
continue with investments

in the near and distant
future.

133/149



 

Board Compliance Committee Meeting 

   Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

June 26th, 2023 

 
  

Present via Zoom: Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, Irene Richardson, CEO, Kandi Pendleton, Trustee-
Chair, Taylor Jones, Trustee, April Prado, Foundation & Compliance. 

 

Minutes 
Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 9:02am by Kandi Pendleton. 
Agenda 
The June agenda was approved as written, Irene made the motion and Taylor seconded it. Kandi asked if 
the agenda had to be approved and it was decided that it doesn’t. During the agenda approval 
discussion Kandi Pendleton asked if the committee needed to vote after each motion and get a second 
since we have such a small voting committee.  It was agreed that the committee did not. 
 
 
Meeting Minutes 
The meeting minutes from the April 24th, 2023 meeting were presented. Taylor made the motion to 
approve the minutes as written and Suzan seconded. Motion carried.   

New Business 
There was no new business.  

Old Business 
A. Timeline-The updated Admitting audit timeline was presented for review. Suzan reported that this 

audit had given us a lot of insight into our process and we have been able to fix things as we go. She 
stated that we had been notified about issues with ABN’s not being generated for Medicare patients 
and that we have worked with Cerner and spoken to doctors and have potentially figured it out. 
Suzan also noted that this audit has been different because there is no policy for training admissions 
staff-we basically have nothing to audit against. She added that April has came up with the audit 
based on information we have received from staff. April added that ABN stands for Advanced 
Beneficiary Notice and is given when Medicare may not pay for a test or procedure. She further 
explained that ABN’s are generated based on “frequency” and “lack of information”. Jodi Corely 
spoke to our physicians about noticing “flags” when they order tests for patients and that they need 
to look for the correct information to make everyone else’s job easier. April continued that Lab and 
Radiology Techs are the staff members having the conversation with the patient when an ABN is 
generated. Patients then chose if they want the test or not and sign the form. If the patient is not 
given the opportunity to sign an ABN, the hospital is financially responsible for whatever Medicare 
denies. Kandi asked for further clarification on ABN’s and April further explained that Medicare 
patients should receive and ABN every time they come for specific lab work like a lipid, TSH or A1C. 
This is because Medicare will only pay for them a certain number of times (frequency) in a year. The 
ABN lets the patient know that Medicare is stating they may not pay and gives the patient the 
opportunity to deny the test. Medicare can also deny a test or procedure based on lack of 
information. This means that their may be additional medical codes or additional information is 
needed.  

B. Audit Questions. Data collected thus far was presented to the committee in a rough draft report. 
Since this was a rough draft, no corrections were recommended at this time.   

Standing Items-Reports 

 

134/149



 

A. HIPAA-The HIPAA report was presented and reviewed. Suzan stated that they have been working to 
get better dates from HR for reporting purposes. She also reported that she followed up with HR 
about our process for recording corrective actions. Per HR, it is entered into our Symplr Performance 
Manager Program. This allows the Director to write up the incident and report the corrective action 
given regarding the incident. HR then signs off on it and closes the incident. This program acts as 
staff’s “permanent record” and is not just for corrective actions. Taylor asked if this is where an 
employee would sign if needed and Suzan replied that yes, they could sign or decline. Kandi added 
that she was happy with the new report that has dates and anyone can see how long these are 
taking. April added that she spoke with HR and asked that they please add dates when they do 
things because if not, it defaults to the day they go in and close it.  

B. Red Flag Reporting. Suzan reported that we had received a red flag report. She stated that the 
employee gave no name or way to contact them and that it was not a compliance issue. She added 
that the report has been sent to HR and that HR would be meeting with the department involved. 
She said that it was strictly an HR issue and nothing to do with compliance. Taylor asked about what 
Red Flag Warning was. Suzan explained that it is our compliance reporting software that allows 
people to report compliance issue anonymously. She continued that it replaced the old “Compliance 
Hotline” phone that we had and that there are posters up all over the hospital about it. Suzan also 
stated that people can report online, they are asked several questions, and then the submitted 
report comes directly to Suzan. Kandi added that she thought we had had this a year or so and 
Suzan said yes and that this is 2nd or 3rd one we have received. Suzan also stated that we never 
received calls on the old system and that 3 in a year is pretty normal.  

C. Exclusionary Report- The Exclusionary report was presents and Suzan reported that there was 
nothing on it for our physicians.  

 

Additional Discussion  
Kandi asked if Suzan signs all the corrective actions or if she just sees them. Suzan stated that she sees 
all of them but only signs on “final written” actions. Kandi further questioned if we needed to go back 
and check for employee signatures-if it would be a compliance item. Suzan asked if they wanted 
signatures checked on any and all corrective actions and Kandi answered yes. Suzan stated that she 
believes she could do it through our Performance Manager program. Taylor added that this was brought 
up at a recent Board meeting and there was a lot of signatures missing leading them to believe that 
there are holes in the process-why are things not being signed? Suzan said that she will meet with HR 
and Irene to get this figured out. Kandi added that it didn’t have to be anything big-just a check.  

 

Next Meeting    

The next meeting is tentatively scheduled for July 24th, 2023 @ 9:00am. This is pending the 
appointment of new committee members and their schedule.        

 

Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 9:37am 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 

April Prado, Recording Secretary  

 

135/149



 

Minutes  

Governance Committee 

June 19, 2023 
 

Present: Irene Richardson, Marty Kelsey, and Barbara Sowada 

Zoom meeting called to order at 2:00 pm  

Agenda approved as written 

Minutes had been previously approved 

 

Old Business 

1. Criteria for Senior Leadership Compensation policy. Noted that draft of policy has yet to be sent to 

Executive Compensation & Oversight Committee for their review and recommendation.  

New Business 

1. Discussed Appointment of Board Committees. Tentative Committee Assignments: 

a. Finance and Audit 

i. Marty – chair 

ii. Taylor 

b. Building and Grounds 

i. Marty – chair 

ii. Craig 

c. Quality 

i. Taylor – chair 

ii. Kandi 

d. Compliance 

i. Kandi – chair 

ii. Barbara 

e. Human Resources 

i. Kandi – chair 

ii. Craig 

f. Governance 

i. Barbara – chair 

ii. Marty 

g. Executive Oversight 

i. Barbara – chair 

ii. Taylor 

h. Joint Conference 

i. Barbara – chair 

ii. Kandi 

i. Foundation Liaison 

i. Taylor/Craig??? 

 

2. Election of Officers. Slate of officers determined: 

136/149



 

a. President, Barbara Sowada (term ends 24); Vice President, Taylor Jones (term ends (25); 

Secretary, Kandi Pendleton (term ends 26); Treasurer, Marty Kelsey (term ends 27). 

3. Discussion of Board Business Plan. Currently, there is not a plan regarding Board oversight regarding 

the addition of a new service or the expansion of an existing service. Agreed that a plan may be needed 

and to lift discussion to full Board at July meeting. Agreed that such a policy, if needed, should have two 

phases: Phase One is a broad, general study by senior leadership to determine whether the service is 

needed. Phase Two is a business plan that includes goals to be achieved and projected revenue and 

expenditures. Marty volunteered to draft the policy for the July meeting. 

4. Discussion of proposed mental health services, ortho robot, and retail pharmacy the hospital is 

exploring.  

5. Education Offering. Discussed Iprotean video on physician credentialing. Decided to move that to 

August meeting. July program will be introduction of Board members. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 3:30 pm. 

Next meeting is July 17, 2023 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

137/149



138/149



139/149



140/149



141/149



142/149



143/149



144/149



145/149



146/149



147/149



148/149



149/149


	Agenda - July 5 2023 Mtg
	Mission and Vision
	Oath
	Minutes for June 6 2023 Draft
	Minutes for June 21 2023 Joint Board Meeting Draft
	Orientation Memo - Success Talent Management Plan Second Read July 5 2023
	Succession- Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan-Draft-History
	Succession- Talent Management Plan - Senior Leadership Plan-Draft-History-Changes
	Annual Conflict of Interest Disclosure
	IP_Orientation Memo Infection Prevention Appointment of C.Worden
	Corey Worden Letter Irene Richardson 2023
	Orientation Memo Template 2023 - PIPS Plan
	Performance Improvement and Patient Safety -PIPS- Plan-Draft Clean Version
	Performance Improvement and Patient Safety -PIPS- Plan-Draft-Changes
	2023_IP Plan Orientation Memo for Board Meeting_Ann
	2023 IP Plan MEC
	Orientation Memo Credentials Committee Radiation Oncology Privilege Form 2023
	Radiation Oncology Clinical Privileges 051723
	Quality Committee
	Finance &amp; Audit Committee
	I.S. Report
	F&A Packet Info for review at July 5 2023 Meeting
	Self Pay Plan-May
	Building and Grounds...Chair&apos;s Report June 2023 Marty Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes June 20 2023 Draft Tami Love
	Laboratory Options
	Foundation Board
	Compliance Committee
	Governance Committee
	Check List for U of U Helipad
	FIRST AMENDMENT TO FACILITY USE AGREEMENT U OF U 2023
	Fibertech
	Martin Ray Laundry Systems
	Radio Network
	Sweetwater Now
	WyoRadio

